
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Chair & Members of the Council  
 
 
 
 
 
Tuesday, 11th February 2020 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

The Arc 
High Street 

Clowne 
S43 4JY 

 
Contact: Nicola Calver 

Telephone: 01246 217753 
Email: nicola.calver@ne-derbyshire.gov.uk 

 
 

Dear Councillor 
 
COUNCIL 
 
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of the Council of the Bolsover District 
Council to be held in the Council Chamber, The Arc, Clowne on Wednesday, 19th 
February, 2020 at 10:00 hours. 
 
Register of Members' Interests - Members are reminded that a Member must within 
28 days of becoming aware of any changes to their Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
provide written notification to the Authority's Monitoring Officer. 
 
You will find the contents of the agenda itemised from page 2 onwards. 
  
Yours faithfully 

 
 

Joint Head of Corporate Governance & Monitoring Officer 

Public Document Pack

1



 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
 

Wednesday, 19th February 2020 at 10:00 in the Council Chamber, The Arc, Clowne 
 

Item No. 
 

PART 1 – OPEN ITEMS Page 
No.(s) 

1.   Apologies For Absence 
 

 

2.   Declarations of Interest 
 

 

 Members should declare the existence and nature of any Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest and Non Statutory Interest as defined by the 
Members’ Code of Conduct in respect of: 
 
a)  any business on the agenda 
b)  any urgent additional items to be considered  
c)  any matters arising out of those items  
and if appropriate, withdraw from the meeting at the relevant time. 
 

 

3.   Chair's Announcements 
 

 

 To receive any announcements that the Chair of the Council may 
desire to lay before the meeting. 
 

 

4.   Minutes 
 

To Follow 

 To approve the Minutes of the Council meeting held on 15th January 
2020 
 

 

5.   Questions from the Public 
 

 

 In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 8, to allow members of 
the public to ask questions about the Council’s activities for a period 
of up to fifteen minutes.  A question may only be asked if notice of 
seven clear working days has been given.  
 

 

6.   Questions from Members 
 

 

 In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 9, to allow Members to 
ask questions about Council activities.  A question may only be asked 
if notice of seven clear working days has been given. 
 
Question Submitted by Councillor Peter Roberts to the Leader of the 
Council, Councillor Steve Fritchley  
 
A number of private and Council tenants have express their concerns 
at the apparent waste of money that is the re-roofing of Council 
properties currently being undertaken. 
 
Many cannot see the need, they don’t leak and tiles are well fastened 
being common comments. Therefore I would ask the Leader to 
explain the reason for the re-roofing with any surveying reports and 
other appropriate information that may help to inform our residents. 

 

2



 

 
 

7.   Motions 
 

 

 In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10, Councillors were able 
to submit Motions on Notice for consideration at meetings of Council. 
 
a) The following motion was submitted for consideration by Councillor 

Peter Roberts: 
 
That Council agrees that building on Council owned garage sites must 
include due regard to the health and well-being of the people it 
affects, must be at the majority consent of the garage tenants, with 
any build benefiting substantially more residents than it impairs and 
must not substantially diminish the quality of life of the garage tenants 
once displaced. 
 
 

 

8.   Reports on urgency decisions taken by the Executive 
 

5 - 9 

 To receive a report from the Executive with details of any Key 
Decisions taken under special urgency provisions or Key Decisions 
which were exempt from Call In. 
 

 

 RECOMMENDED ITEMS 
 

 

 To receive any items recommended for Council consideration from 
meetings of the Executive or Committees. 
 

 

9.   Mileage Policy 
 

10 - 22 

 Report of Cllr Duncan McGregor, Portfolio Holder for Corporate 
Governance 
 

 

 REPORTS OF PORTFOLIO HOLDERS 
 

 

 To give consideration to reports of the Leader and Portfolio Holders 
for decision. 
 

 

10.   2020 - 2024 Council Ambition 
 

To Follow 

 Report of Councillor Steve Fritchley, Leader of the Council 
 

 

11.   Procedure for Conferring the title of Honorary Alderman 
 

23 - 31 

 Report of Councillor Steve Fritchley, Leader of the Council 
 

 

12.   Medium Term Financial Plan 2020/21 to 2023/24 
 

32 - 54 

 Report of Councillor Clive Moesby, Portfolio Holder for Finance and 
Resources 
 
 
 
 

 

3



 

 
 
 
 
 

13.   Treasury Strategy Reports 2020/21 - 2023/24 
 

55 - 94 

 Report of Councillor Clive Moesby, Portfolio Holder for Finance and 
Resources 
 

 

14.   Chairman's Closing Remarks 
 

 

4



 

 
 

Bolsover District Council  
 

Council  
 

19th February 2020 
 

Report on Urgency Decisions Taken by the Executive 

 
Report of the Leader  

 
This report is public  

 
Purpose of the Report 
 

 To inform Council of a recent decision taken under Special Urgency provisions by 
the Council’s Executive in relation to the disposal of a parcel of land off St Martin's 
Walk at Hodthorpe. 

 
1 Report Details 
 
1.1 A Key Decision is an Executive decision which is likely to:  

 
 Result in the Council incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings 

which are, significant having regard to the Council’s budget for the service or 
function to which the decision relates; or  
 

 Be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an 
area comprising two or more wards within the District.  

 
The Council considers the level for significant income or expenditure to be £75,000 
for revenue and £150,000 for capital.  

 
1.2 The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 

Information) (England) Regulations 2012 require that all Key Decisions must be 
published at least 28 days prior to being made.  Where this is not possible the 
decision may still be made so long as there is compliance with General Exception 
provisions.  This involves informing the Chair of the relevant Scrutiny Committee 
and publishing a notice five days prior to making the decision outlining the reasons 
why the matter is urgent and compliance with the requirements is not possible.  

 
1.3 Where it is impractical to comply with the General Exception rules, a Key Decision 

may only be taken in cases of Special Urgency.  This is where the Chair of the 
relevant Scrutiny Committee (or, in their absence the Chair of Council or Vice Chair 
of Council) agrees that the decision is urgent and cannot be reasonably deferred.  
Again, the Council must publish a notice setting out the reasons why the decision is 
urgent and cannot be reasonably deferred. 

 
1.4 The decision was taken under the Special Urgency provisions so that the Council 

could benefit from the capital receipt at the negotiated price, avoiding the risk the 

5

Agenda Item 8



 

price being reduced as a consequence of delay. The Chair of Growth Scrutiny 
Committee approved the use of the procedure.  

 
1.5 The Urgency Notice setting out the reason for urgency is attached at Appendix 1. 

An extract of the Decision Notice which records the decision taken on this matter is 
attached at Appendix 2. 

 
2 Conclusions and Reasons for Recommendation  
 
2.1 Members are asked to note the decision recently taken under Special Urgency 

provisions 
 
3 Consultation and Equality Impact 
 
3.1 Not applicable. 
 
4 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not applicable as this report is for information only in compliance with the Council’s 

procedure rules.  
 
5 Implications 
 
5.1 Finance and Risk Implications 
 
5.1.1 There are no financial or risk implications arising from this report. Executive 

considered all implications in reaching the decision.  
  
5.2 Legal Implications including Data Protection 
 
5.2.1 The legislation related to Key Decisions and Urgency Procedures is outlined in 

section 1.  
 
5.3 Human Resources Implications 
 
5.3.1 There are no human resources implications arising from this report.  
 
6 Recommendations 
 
6.1 That the report be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6



 

 
 
7 Decision Information 
 

Is the decision a Key Decision? 
A Key Decision is an executive decision 
which has a significant impact on two or 
more District wards or which results in 
income or expenditure to the Council above 
the following thresholds:               

No 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BDC:     
 

Revenue - £75,000    
Capital - £150,000     

NEDDC:  
 

Revenue - £100,000  
Capital - £250,000     

 Please indicate which threshold applies 

Is the decision subject to Call-In? 
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)  
 

No 

Has the portfolio holder been informed 
 

Yes 

District Wards Affected 
 

N/A 

Links to Corporate Plan priorities or 
Policy Framework 
 

Demonstrating good governance 

 
 
 
8 Document Information 
 

Appendix No 
 

Title 

Appendix 1 
Appendix 2 

Urgency Notice 
Decision Notice Extract 
 

Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied 
on to a material extent when preparing the report.  They must be listed in the 
section below.  If the report is going to Cabinet (NEDDC) or Executive (BDC) 
you must provide copies of the background papers) 

 

Report Author 
 

Contact Number 

Donna Cairns, Senior Governance Officer 
 

01246 242529 

 

7



 
 
 
 

Executive 
 

Monday, 10 February 2020 
 

The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 
Information) (England) Regulations 2012 

 
Notice is hereby given in accordance with Regulations 5 and 11 of the Local Authorities 
(Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 
2012 that the following key decision to be made in private at the above Meeting of 
Executive. This was not included the List Of Key Decisions And Items To Be Considered 
In Private which was issued on 24th January 2020. 
 

Disposal of a parcel of land off St Martin's Walk at Hodthorpe 
 

 
Compliance with the requirement to give 28 clear days and 5 clear days notice in 
accordance with the above Regulations is impracticable as the matter is urgent and cannot 
reasonably be deferred. 
 
Reason for urgency: The Council have been in negotiations with Keepmoat Homes 
Limited over the access / disposal of this piece of land since 2015.  Keepmoat Homes 
Limited are bound by a Grampian Condition as part of their planning application for the 
development in Hodthorpe, which requires the confirmed access over the aforementioned 
land prior commencement of any works on site.  The urgency is necessary to ensure that 
the negotiated price is accepted and there is no room for Keepmoat to reduce the price 
due to a delay. They have set a deadline of next week for agreement. By considering the 
matter on 10 Feb, the Council can continue to progress the matter with Keepmoat Homes 
Limited’s solicitor and complete the matter promptly.  This too will enable Keepmoat to 
commence with the development of the land. 
 
This report is exempt and it is proposed that it be considered in private to avoid the 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to 
the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
information)(Variation) Order 2006). 
 
The Chair of the Growth Scrutiny Committee has been informed of the key decision to be 
taken in respect of the exempt report and has consented to consideration of the report 
being held in private and the decision being made at the above meeting of Executive. 

 

 
Sarah Sternberg 
Head of Corporate Governance & Monitoring Officer 
 
6th February 2020 

8



EXTRACT - DECISION NOTICE OF THE EXECUTIVE 
MONDAY, 10TH FEBRUARY 2020 

 
 
EXEMPT ITEMS 
 
KEY DECISION – UNDER SPECIAL URGENCY PROCEDURE 
 

AGENDA ITEM DECISION 
 

7 Disposal of a parcel of land off St 
Martin's Walk at Hodthorpe 

RESOLVED – That Executive approve the 
disposal of the parcel of land on St Martins Walk to 
Keepmoat Homes Limited and delegate powers to 
the Director of Development, in consultation with 
the Leader, to finalise the terms of sale.  
 
REASON FOR DECISION: 
In order for Keepmoat Homes Limited to 
commence development of the scheme on land to 
the north west of Broad Lane in Hodthorpe, 
approval was granted for the disposal of the 
Council owned ransom strip to Keepmoat Homes 
Limited to satisfy condition 2 of the Planning 
Approval. 
 
OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED: 
There was no other alternative option available in 
order to achieve sustainable development.  
 

 
 
 

9



UNION/EMPLOYEE CONSULTATION COMMITTEE –  
6TH FEBRUARY 2020 
 
 
A. DRAFT ORGANISATIONAL POLICIES – MILEAGE AND RELATED 

TRAVEL EXPENSES 
 
Committee considered a report in relation to the revised Mileage and Related Travel 
Expenses Policy. 
 
At a special meeting of the Committee held on 5th December 2019, it was resolved 
that  the Human Resources and OD Manager send a revised draft of the policy to 
union representatives that incorporated the following changes: 

 
a) paragraph 2 of Part 10 shall clearly apply to the first bullet point in 

Part 3 of the policy; 
 

b) wording in the 5th bullet point of Part 1 of the policy as highlighted 
in bold below; 

 
Employees must provide the following details sufficient and 
reasonable detail on a mileage claim form 
 

c) additional wording be added to the policy to clarify what constituted 
‘a normal place of work’ 

 
It was further resolved that union representatives would respond to the above and 
provide the Human Resources & OD Manager with a list of their outstanding issues. 
 
The draft revised Mileage and Related Travel Expenses Policy now presented to 
Committee incorporated the changes agreed between the unions and management.  
The Human Resources & OD Manager confirmed that a Manager must confirm to an 
employee what constituted ‘their normal place of work’ for the post. 
 
Unison representatives thanked the Human Resources & OD Manager for her 
partnership working on the policy and for her patience and cooperation and also 
Members on the Committee for helping Unison to get to a conclusion. 
 
A Member also thanked the Human Resources & OD Manager. 
 
Moved by Kevin Shillitto (Unison) and seconded by Mary Dooley 
RESOLVED that the draft revised Mileage and Related Travel Expenses Policy be 

recommended to Council for approval. 
 

(Human Resources & OD Manager/Governance Manager) 
 

10

Agenda Item 9



 

 

          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Mileage & Related Travel 
Expenses Policy 

 
BDC 

 
January 2020 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11



 

 
 

 
  

12



 

CONTROL SHEET FOR MILEAGE AND RELATED TRAVEL EXPENSES POLICY 
 

 
Policy Details 

 
Comments / Confirmation 

(To be updated as the 
document progresses) 

 

Policy  title  
 

BDC Mileage and Related 
Travel Expenses Policy 

  

Current status – i.e. first draft, version 2 or 
final version 
 

Final Draft 

  

Policy author (post title only) 
 

SAMT 
Trade Unions 
Leader & Deputy Leader 

  

Location of policy (whilst in development) – 
i.e. L-drive, shared drive 
 

S Drive HR folder 

  

Relevant Cabinet Member (if applicable) 
 

Cllr McGregor 

  

Equality Impact Assessment approval date 
 

 

  

Partnership involvement (if applicable) 
 

N/A 

  

Final policy approval route i.e. Joint Strategic 
Alliance Committee, 
Cabinet/Executive/Council  
 

SAMT 
UECC 
Council 

  

Date policy approved 
 

 

  

Date policy due for review (maximum three 
years) 
 

 

  

Date policy forwarded to Improvement (to 
include on Intranet and  Internet if applicable 
to the public) 
 

 

 
 

13



 

           BDC MILEAGE & RELATED TRAVEL EXPENSES POLICY 
 
Official travel must always be conducted in an economical manner and alternative 
means such as telephone/video conferencing, public transport, pool cars etc must be 
considered as a first option. This approach supports the Council’s Climate Change 
and Transformation Agendas. 
 
To meet business needs and to deliver excellent services to our residents, 
employees are required to work at any place of employment in the service of the 
Council. Therefore, travel and submission of related expenses will occur on a regular 
basis for some members of the workforce. 
 
The Mileage and Related Travel Expenses Policy sets out the process to be followed 
by all employees. This policy document supersedes any previous mileage and 
related travel expenses policies or procedures in place previously at BDC. 
 
Payment of mileage and related travel expenses will be made with salary.  
 

1. Employee Responsibilities 
 

 It is the responsibility of the employee to be fully conversant with this policy for 
Mileage and Related Travel Expenses.  
 

 All employees should be fully aware of and have read and understood the 
terms and conditions of the Council’s Driving at Work Policy. 
 

 Employees have a responsibility to ensure any journey undertaken is 
essential to business operations and the cost to the Council is kept to a 
minimum. Employees are expected to co-ordinate work activities and travel to 
ensure value for money and to reduce the costs and time implications 
incurred. 
 

 Employees must only submit claims for their own travel expenses and 
payment should only be claimed for journeys actually undertaken. 
 

 Employees must provide the following details sufficient and reasonable 
detail on a mileage claim form including: 
 

o Date of journey 
o Start location 
o Locations visited 
o End location 
o Reason for the journey 
o Total business mileage incurred 

 

 Employees must provide sufficient and reasonable detail on their claim form 
to enable their Manager/Authorising Officer to fully consider and assess the 
claim.  
 

 Employees using their cars on official Council business must: 

14



 

 
o Possess a current full valid driving licence for the vehicle they are driving 
o Ensure the vehicle is in a roadworthy condition prior to the commencement 

of and during the journey 
o Ensure the vehicle has a current MOT certificate, where appropriate 
o Possess business use insurance for the vehicle 
o Provide the original copies of the above documents to their line manager 

on an annual basis (See Appendix One) 

 
 Where it is appropriate for an employee to use their private vehicle, business 

mileage must be conducted in accordance with the Road Traffic Act in 
conjunction with the Highway Code and any current legislation. If a manager 
has any concerns in relation to an employee adhering to this, please consult 
the HR Team. 

 
2. Manager/Authorising Officer’s Responsibilities  

 

 It is the responsibility of the Manager/Authorising officer to be fully conversant 
with this policy prior to any claim being made.  
 

 Managers/Authorising officers will be required to review, check and authorise 
claims ensuring the claim is accurate to the best of their knowledge as far as 
reasonably possible and the journey has been necessarily incurred. 

 
3. What Mileage and Related Travel Costs can Employees Claim? 

 

 Any business mileage incurred based on the shortest route, and where the 
corporate standard mileages have been established, these must be used and 
can be found at Appendix Two. Please also refer to paragraph 2 of Part 10 of 
the policy. 
 

 Any reasonable parking fees etc, incurred during the journey will be 
reimbursed. Receipts should be retained in support of any claim.  

 

 BDC - for the purpose of claiming mileage allowance for approved 
passengers, the claimant must declare the name of each passenger as part of 
their mileage claim. 

 
4. What Mileage and Related Travel Costs cannot be Claimed? 

 

 Any home to work mileage and work to home mileage i.e. commuter mileage 
The Council is not responsible for the cost incurred by an officer in travelling 
to and from home to work because an individual is free to choose their 
residence and is expected to meet any expense in travelling between home 
and his/her normal place of work * 
 

 If travelling to a different site from home, normal home to work mileage must 
be deducted. For example, if attending a training course in Leeds (north of 
both Districts outside of the District), normal commuter mileage from home to 
Arc for joint officers would have to be deducted, if travelling by car. 

15



 

 If employees choose to take a longer route through personal 
choice/convenience e.g. to avoid motorway driving, the employee must only 
claim for the actual shortest distance between locations. 

 

 Fixed penalty parking fines, fixed penalty notices, driving endorsements and 
associated costs etc, are the sole responsibility of the employee. 

 

 Normal place of work - The manager will confirm the normal place/s of work 
for the post. This will be defined as where the postholder:  

 
o works on a day to day basis and 
o where facilities are provided that the employee needs to 

perform their duties  
 

5. *Travel from Home Outside Contracted Working Hours 
 

Where a journey in the course of duty starts and ends at home because of 
work outside of normal contractual hours, or there is a requirement to return to 
work after a normal days work, the mileage to be claimed is the actual 
mileage from and return to home. This mileage is taxable and must be 
recorded separately. In these circumstances employees can claim the travel 
time. Employees with no fixed/normal work base should check the 
arrangements with their Line Manager who must consult with HR or Payroll. 

 
6. Journeys which Start at Home  

 
If an employee’s journey to a temporary workplace location for the day such 
as a training course at an external site starts from home, mileage can be 
claimed. However, employees must deduct their normal home to work 
mileage (from the closest available place of work) from the home to 
temporary workplace journey. If the journey is greater than the normal home 
to work commute, employees should only claim for the difference. If the 
journey is less than the normal home to work commute, no claim should be 
made. An employee cannot turn their normal commute into a business 
journey by merely arranging an appointment on the way; HMRC expect an 
employee to demonstrate the appointment was necessary and not a matter of 

convenience. For example, if the HR & OD Manager (joint officer) is 

undertaking a training a course in York, the normal journey from home to the 
Arc must be deducted, as the training is north of both Districts. 

 
7. Journeys which End at Home  

 
The same applies for journeys where employees do not return to their 
workplace following their last visit and go straight home. If the journey is 
greater than the normal work to home commute (from the closest available 
place of work), employees should only claim for the difference. If the journey 
is less than the normal work to home commute, no claim should be made. An 
employee cannot turn their normal commute into a business journey by 
merely arranging an appointment on the way home; HMRC expect an 
employee to demonstrate the appointment was necessary and not a matter of 

16



 

convenience. For example, if the HR & OD Manager (joint officer) is 
undertaking a home visit in South Normanton, no claim could be made, as this 
is classed as a place of work reflective of the job role. 

 
It is important to note employees are required to work at any place of 
employment in the service of the Council in line with their contract of 
employment, this includes undertaking site visits which would be classed as a 
place of work 

 
8. Contracted Homeworking  

 
During home working (i.e. if contracted to work at home), mileage will be 
payable on business journeys from home to work site subject to this not 
exceeding the mileage which would have normally been incurred to these sites 
from the closest available workplace. It will be necessary for the manager and 
the employee to agree the detail of this in advance in each individual case in 
consultation with HR. 

 
9. Agile/Flexible Working  

 
As our workforce becomes more flexible, many employees find they have the 
benefit of a flexible working arrangements including agile working. In these 
circumstances, it is important and expected that all employees (in conjunction 
with their line manager) manage their travel efficiently and limit it, and any 
claims, as far as reasonably possible. This ensures employees work within 
the spirit of agile working and the increasing flexibility this brings to the 
individual. If an employee chooses to travel to other locations (other than 
their closest available workplace) as part of agile working, HMRC will consider 
this as personal convenience and no claims can be made. 

 
10. Mileage Distances between Locations (Shortest Distances Principal) 

 
The corporate mileage guidance table is available on the S Drive (HR & 
Payroll folder) and the Extranet. This has been developed using three 
different routes for the journey and taking the average mileage to give an 
accurate and consistent mileage distance as possible. The spirit within which 
Local Government policies work is to shortest distance rather than shortest 
time. 

 
It is appreciated there may be rare occasions e.g. due to traffic accidents, 
adverse weather conditions etc, when it may not be possible for the shortest 
route to be taken. Such instances must be appropriately identified when 
making a claim. This must be discussed with and authorised by an 
employees’ line manager prior to submitting a claim. 

 
11. How and When to Make a Mileage Claim 

 
All claims for mileage should be submitted via HR21 or for those with no 
access to a PC via completion of a mileage claim form at the end of each 
calendar month and authorised as appropriate. Claims should be submitted 

17



 

on a monthly basis and must be submitted within three calendar months of 
undertaking the journey. A late claim will not be paid. A guide on how to 
record mileage/travel claims is included in the HR21 Guidance on the 
Extranet or S Drive. 

 
12. When will a Payment for Mileage not be made? 

 
The Council reserves the right to refuse to meet the whole or part of claims in 
respect of unreasonable expenses or expenses which could have been 
avoided had the journey been better planned.  

 

The Council will withhold payment of any claim until an employee satisfies the 
requirement to provide the relevant documentation as outlined in this policy 
e.g. insurance documents.  

 

All required documents must be provided within 28 calendar days of request. 
Failure to provide all documents within this timeframe will result in the 
following action being taken until the appropriate documents are provided:  

 

o cessation of payment of any monthly allowance  
o the employee will not be permitted to use their vehicle to carry out any 

council business journeys, and:  
o non-payment of any mileage claims. 

  
Allowances and payments will not be back-dated if reinstated at a later date. 

 
Please note employee’s failure to perform faithfully the duties specified in their 
contract of employment and follow a reasonable management instruction will 
be dealt with under the Council’s Disciplinary Policy. 

 
13. Joint Officers or Employees with Multiple Bases 

 
If employee’s work across two Councils or have multiple bases, the manager 
will confirm the normal place/s of work for the post in line with Section Four of 
the Policy.   only Journeys undertaken during the working day can be claimed. 
This does not include home to work mileage/time and work to home 
mileage/time. Employees are not able to claim home to work mileage/time, i.e. 
travel to and from first normal work location and last normal work location. 
Travel/time during the working day can be claimed and only if the travel is 
necessary i.e. to attend a meeting etc. 

For example, if an employee works from multiple locations such as The Arc, 
Mill Lane Offices, Depots, Contact Centres, Business Centres, Leisure 
Centres etc. Any available workplace is classed as an employees’ place of 
work for that day. No journey mileage/time to or from home/work can be 
claimed. Site visits are considered as places of work and the above policy is 
applied accordingly. 

Employees are required to work at any place of employment in the service of 
the Council/s in line with their contract of employment. 

 

18



 

14. VAT receipts – (BDC Only) 
 

A VAT receipt for fuel used on work journeys must be obtained and kept in an 
orderly fashion for a period of six years after the end of the tax year to which 
they relate. Receipts must be available for inspection during this period. 

 
15. What if I change my Vehicle? 

 
If an employee changes their car then they will need to complete the “Change 
of Vehicle’ form available on S Drive or from Payroll. 

 
16. When will I receive Payment for Mileage and related Travel Expenses? 

 
Claims made electronically will be processed and paid within the next 
available salary payment. Claims submitted on paper forms will be processed 
and paid as soon as possible and no later than with the salary for the month 
following the submission of the form. 

 

      17. Mileage Rates 
 

All journeys are paid at the appropriate mileage rate applicable for that car 
user. Employees must ensure the journeys claimed are accurate and reflect 
the Council’s policy and practice. For example, commuter mileage must not 
be claimed 

 
BDC 
 
Current Mileage rates are based on HMRC rates and the current rates are detailed 
below and are not liable for tax and national insurance: 
 

 45p per mile for the first 10,000 miles 

 25p per mile after the first 10,000 miles 
 
An extra 5p per mile can be claimed for carrying each approved passenger. 
 
Public transport rate is currently 16.4p per mile and is applicable at the Council. 

 
18.  Qualification Courses/Training 

 
If an employee travels to an approved qualification course or exam at an 
external site, they can claim travel expenses for any miles travelled over and 
above your normal journey to the closest available workplace, paid at public 
transport mileage rate. Employees can claim other reasonable costs subject 
to the provisions of the Learning and Development scheme. 

 
19. Public Transport 

 
The same principles identified above apply to employees who incur travel 
fares in the course of undertaking their duties. Where alternative means of 
public transport exist (e.g. bus or rail) the most suitable in terms of cost and 

19



 

time should be used and claimed accordingly. Cheap rate fares should be 
used where possible. 

 
20. Rail Travel 

 
All employees will travel standard class unless a less costly fare is available. 
Where possible, tickets should be purchased in advance.  

 
21. Taxi Fares 

 
The cost of hiring a taxi will only be reimbursed where it is absolutely 
necessary and in the interests of the Council, or where it is otherwise 
reasonable e.g. if public transport is not available. Receipts are required. 

 
22. Monitoring and Administration of Mileage and Related Travel Claims 

 
Payroll are responsible for administering the scheme. Advice in relation to 
mileage and related claims may be sought from Payroll or HR. In any matter 
relating to the scheme, the decision of the Payroll Manager and HR & OD 
Manager, in consultation with a representative from the Strategic Alliance 
Senior Management Team, is final. 

 

Abuse of travel/mileage allowances and failure to follow the policy will be dealt 
with under the disciplinary procedure. Please note the submission of false or 
fraudulent mileage claims or related travel expenses is considered gross 
misconduct. 

 
 
January 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

20



 

 
Appendix One - Annual Documents Check Responsibilities 

 
Employees using their cars on official Council business must provide original copies 
of the following documents to their manager on an annual basis or whenever a 
vehicle is changed or any other related changes occur: 
 

 Full Driving Licence 

 MOT Certificate 

 Insurance Documents covering the employee for Business Use Insurance 
 
 
In order to undertake the driving licence check the employee is required to visit the 
following website https://www.gov.uk/view-driving-licence in order to generate the 
check code. 
 
The Manager/Authorising Officer checking the licence should go to 
https://www.gov.uk/check-driving-information and use the check code provided by 
the employee to view the employee’s licence information.  
 
Managers should then complete the Employee Driving on Council Business 
Checklist Record online form available under Do it Online on the Extranet, which will 
be sent direct to the Payroll Team as a record the Manager has undertaken the 
check. 
 
Managers are not required to keep copies of the original documents seen. 
 
 
Endorsements/Convictions 
Employees must inform their manager immediately if they receive points on their 
licence, any other penalty in relation to driving or any health condition or reason that 
relates to driving a vehicle. If an employee has six points or more on their Licence or 
another similar penalty or concern arises, the frequency of the document checks 
should increase to every six months. 
 
The above ensures the Council is compliant with it’s own insurance arrangements 
and is based on guidance from the Finance Team. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

21

https://www.gov.uk/view-driving-licence
https://www.gov.uk/check-driving-information


 

 

 
 

Appendix Two 
BDC Mileage 

Guidance Table 

Clowne            
S43 
4JY 

Doe Lea 
S44 5NY 

Mill Lane 
S42 6NG 

Shirebrook 
CC              

NG20 8AW 

South 
Normanton 

CC                 
DE55 2AA 

Bolsover 
CC           

S44 6HR 

Pleasley 
Vale        

NG19 8RL 

Tangent B 
Park         

NG20 8RX 

Dronfield 
SC             

S18 1PD 

Sharley 
Park           

S45 9LX 

Eckington 
Pool        

S21 4DA 

Eckington 
Depot      

S21 4HL 

Pioneer 
House       

S42 6NT 

Coney 
Green      

S45 9JW 

Derbyshire 
Dales             
DE4 3NN 

Clowne                        
S43 4JY 0 8 10.5 7.5 14 4 8.5 9.5 12 12.5 5 5.5 10.5 12 18 

Doe Lea                          
S44 5NY 8 0 6.5 5.5 9.5 4 4 6 14 5 10.5 11 6.5 5 13.5 

Mill Lane                      
S42 6NG 10.5 6.5 0 5.5 9 7.5 11 12.5 11 3.5 9.5 10.5 0 3.5 9 

Shirebrook CC            
NG20 8AW 7.5 5.5 5.5 0 12.5 5 3.5 1 18.5 10.5 12 12.5 13.5 11 18.5 

South 
Normanton CC                          

DE55 2AA 14 9.5 9 12.5 0 11.5 9.5 11.5 21.5 7.5 17.5 17.5 9 7.5 11.5 

Bolsover CC                    
S44 6HR 4 4 7.5 5 11.5 0 6 5.5 13 7.5 7.5 8 8.5 7.5 15 

Pleasley Vale                
NG19 8RL 8.5 4 11 3.5 9.5 6 0 4 18.5 9 14 14.5 12 9 17 

Tangent B Park          
NG20 8RX 9.5 6 12.5 1 11.5 5.5 4 0 19.5 11 13 13 14 11 18.5 

Dronfield SC                 
S18 1PD 12 14 11 18.5 21.5 13 18.5 19.5 0 14.5 6 6.5 10.5 14.5 17 

Sharley Park                 
S45 9LX 12.5 5 3 10.5 7.5 7.5 9 11 14.5 0 12 13 4.5 0.5 8.5 

Eckington Pool              
S21 4DA 5 10.5 9.5 12 17.5 7.5 14 13 6.5 12 0 1 10 13 16.5 

Eckington Depot            
S21 4HL 5.5 10.5 10.5 12.5 17.5 8 14.5 13 6.5 13 1 0 10.5 13.5 19 

Pioneer House               
S42 6NT 10.5 6.5 0 13.5 9 8.5 12 14 105 4.5 10 10.5 0 5 8.5 

Coney Green                    
S45 9JW 12 5 3.5 11 7.5 7.5 9 11 14.5 0.5 13 13.5 5 0 8.5 

Derbyshire 
Dales         

DE4 3NN 18 13.5 9 18.5 11.5 15 16.5 18.5 17 8.5 16.5 17 8.5 8.5 0 

22



 
 

 
 

Bolsover District Council 
 

Council 
 

19th February 2019 
 

CONFERRING THE TITLE OF HONORARY ALDERMAN OF THE DISTRICT – 
CRITERIA, ROLE AND LIMITATIONS 

 
Report of the Leader of the Council 

 
This report is public  

 
Purpose of the Report 
 

 To present suggested criteria in accordance with section 249 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 to be used in the consideration of a nomination for an 
Honorary Alderman of the District 

 To suggest a definition of the role of an Honorary Alderman for Members’ 
consideration. 

 
1 Report Details 
 
 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 Section 249(1) of the Local Government Act 1972 states “that a principal council 

may, by a resolution passed by not less than two thirds of the members voting 
thereon, at a meeting of the Council specially convened for the purpose with notice 
of the object, confer the title of Honorary Alderman on persons who have, in the 
opinion of the Council, rendered Eminent Services to the Council as past members 
of that Council but who are not then members of the Council." 

 
1.2 Historically Bolsover District Council has conferred 13 Honorary Alderman since 

District Councils were permitted this right within the LGA 1992.  However, the 
agreed and published process and criterion for undertaking this is not prescriptive, 
therefore it is prudent at this time to review and make proposals for an established 
procedure. 

 
1.3 There is no statutory guidance or definition of “eminent services” and therefore 

Bolsover District Council will need to set their own criteria for the appointment of 
Honorary Aldermen.  A suggested criteria and process has been drawn up and is 
set out in this report for agreement. 

 
1.4 Each Council may set the guidelines and limitations for the role of their Honorary 

Aldermen.  This report sets out a suggested role for agreement as well as a 
process of conferring. 

 
 
 

23

Agenda Item 11



 
 

 CRITERIA AND PROCESS 
 
1.5 A suggested Criteria and Process is set out below for consideration. 
 
 1.5.1 The Criteria for an Honorary Alderman will be measured by the Honours 

Panel prior to submission to Council for a final decision.  It will be 
determined prior to calling a meeting of Council whether a candidate fills a 
substantial amount of the criteria. 
 
a) Must be a Former Councillor of Bolsover District Council who has 

rendered Eminent Services to the Council 
 
b) Must have completed 16 or more years of service (4 terms) to 

Bolsover District Council (service does not have to be continual) 
 
c) Must have concluded their service to the Council within the past 4 

years 
 
d) Consideration may be given to Members who have completed less 

than 16 years’ service that have held the title of Chair of Council, 
Vice Chair of Council, Leader, Deputy Leader, or Leader of the 
Opposition. 

 
e) Must be nominated in writing to the Governance Manager by a 

current serving Member of Council, preferably (but not exclusively) 
by the Leader of the nominees party. The nomination must state how 
the nominee has rendered Eminent Service to the Council and the 
people of Bolsover. 

 
f) A proposition must be approved by two thirds of the present 

Members at a meeting of Council called specifically for that sole 
purpose. 

 
On the passing of the recommendation it should be announced that at the 
following meeting of Council an aldermanic badge, certificate and gift will 
be presented to the candidate with a small reception following the meeting 
hosted by the Chair of Council in celebration. 
 

 ROLE AND LIMITATIONS 
 
1.6 A suggested definition of the role of an Honorary Alderman is set out below for 

consideration. 
 

1.6.1. To enjoy the courtesy title of Honorary Alderman and be so addressed 
and to receive a badge of office, and also to have their name entered on 
to the Roll of Honour within the Council Chamber. 

 
1.6.2. To be invited to attend Civic Functions hosted by the Council (Services, 

Dinners, Charity Events etc.) and be invited to take part in civic 
processions with precedence over currently serving members but not 
the Chair of the Council or Vice Chair. 

 

24



 
 

1.6.3 To be invited to attend meetings of Annual Council for the Appointment 
of Chair of the Council, Vice Chair, and they may attend Council 
meetings as a non-participating guest and (on advance notification 
received) will have a seat reserved for them in the Chamber. 

 
1.6.4. They are welcome to receive Minutes, Agendas and Papers (non-

exempt only) for meetings of Council. 
 
1.6.5 They are welcome to receive the Council Year Book. 
 
1.6.6. If the Honorary Alderman has held the office of Chair of the Council or 

Vice Chair during their service to Bolsover District Council, they may be 
called upon to represent the Council at a Civic Function in the absence 
of the Chair or Vice-Chair of the Council. 

 
1.6.7.  They may wear their Aldermanic Badge at any function or meeting that 

they are attending in their capacity as Honorary Alderman. 
 
1.6.8.  They may wish to assist the Chair of Council in Charity Fund Raising for 

the Chair’s chosen Charity / Charities. 
 
1.6.9.  They become an ambassador for the Council and promote Civic Pride. 

 
1.6.10. To enjoy such privileges as Bolsover District Council may from time to 

time confer upon Honorary Aldermen. 
 

1.7 There are suggested limitations to the role of Honorary Alderman, which have been 
set out below: 
 
1.7.1. No payments will be made to an Honorary Alderman for any service or 

expenditure that they undertake whilst in office. 
 
1.7.2. They may not take part in Council meetings (apart from Public Question 

Time in accordance with the Council Procedure Rules). 
 
1.7.3. Honorary Aldermen may be reappointed by election of the public to 

serve on Bolsover District Council, but their Aldermanic Office is 
suspended for the period of their appointment. 

 
 
PROCESS 

 
1.8 A process is suggested for administrating nominations for this honour as set out 

below: 
 
 1.8.1 A nominee must be nominated in writing (including electronic 

 submissions) to the Governance Manager by a currently serving Member 
 of Council and seconded by a further serving Member of Council. 

 
 
 
 

25



 
 

 1.8.2 A meeting of an Honours Panel will be called on receipt of a nomination 
 where it will be considered against the agreed criteria.  The Panel will be 
 comprised of: 

 Chair of Council 

 Leader of the Council 

 Deputy Leader 

 Monitoring Officer 
 

1.8.3 Following measurement against criteria, nominations will be circulated to all 
 Members of Council in an appropriate format on a confidential basis. 
 Councillors will be given the opportunity to state any objections to the 
 nomination in writing and in a confidential manner and reasons for any 
 objection to a nomination must be given. 

 
1.8.4 The Honours Panel will consider any objections and decide whether a 

candidate fills a substantial amount of the criteria before requesting for the 
Chief Executive to call an extraordinary meeting of Council. An 
extraordinary meeting of Council will not be called if the objections are as 
such that the Panel determines that a nomination will not be supported by 
the Council. 

 
1.8.5 If an extraordinary meeting of Council is called to consider the nomination 

then it will be called immediately prior to or following a scheduled meeting 
of Council. 

 
1.8.6 The report containing the nomination will be considered exempt under 

paragraphs 1 and 2 of schedule 12a of the Local Government Act 1972 and 
will only be deemed carried if approved by two thirds of the present 
Members at the extraordinary meeting of Council called specifically for that 
sole purpose. 

 
1.8.7 A candidate will not be aware of a nomination until advised of their 

appointment following approval by Council. They will not be made aware of 
a nomination if unsuccessful. Only successful nominations will be made 
public. 

 
1.8.8 On the passing of the recommendation it should be announced that at a 

future meeting of Council a certificate, an appropriate gift, and an 

Aldermanic Badge will be presented to the candidate with a small reception 

following the meeting hosted by the Chair of Council in celebration. 

 
2 Conclusions and Reasons for Recommendation  
 
2.1 It is vital that a criteria is agreed for this right of Council in order to consider any 

future nominations. 
 
2.2 The criterion set out in the report has been drawn up for future use and is not 

applicable to any Honorary Alderman already conferred. 
 

26



 
 

2.3 Setting the role and limitations provides some clear guidance for both existing and 
future Honorary Aldermen. 

 
2.4 A process helps to inform action when a nomination is received.  The nomination 

form is attached to this report as Appendix 1. 
 
 
3 Consultation and Equality Impact 
 
3.1 There are no equality issues arising from this report.  Any that become apparent 

through conferring future Honorary Aldermen will be reported at the time. 
 
3.2 The suggested criteria and process has been considered by the Monitoring Officer, 

Chief Executive, as well as leading Members to adjust it to the needs and wants of 
this Authority. 

 
 
4 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Members may decide not to adopt this process and retain the current criteria which 

was agreed in 2015 which stated that any Member serving 25 years or more would 
be conferred as an Honorary Alderman. 

 
 
5 Implications 
 
5.1 Finance and Risk Implications 
 
5.1.1 There are no financial implications for the agreement of a set of criteria for the 

purpose of conferring the title of Honorary Alderman.  Any expense incurred can 
be considered during the Council appointment of an Honorary Alderman. 

  
5.2 Legal Implications including Data Protection 
 
5.2.1 This decision is made under the legal framework of the 1972 Local Government 

Act, Section 249 as detailed in part 1 of the report. 
 
5.3 Human Resources Implications 
 
5.3.1 There are no staffing implications. 
 
 
6 Recommendations 
 
6.1 That Members consider and agree the criteria to be used in the process of 

conferring the title of Honorary Alderman to a nominated individual; and 
 
6.2 That Members consider and agree a definition of the role and limitations of an 

Honorary Alderman. 
 
 
 

27



 
 

7 Decision Information 
 

Is the decision a Key Decision? 
A Key Decision is an executive decision 
which has a significant impact on two or 
more District wards or which results in 
income or expenditure to the Council above 
the following thresholds:               

No 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BDC:     
 

Revenue - £75,000    
Capital - £150,000     

NEDDC:  
 

Revenue - £100,000  
Capital - £250,000     

 Please indicate which threshold applies 

Is the decision subject to Call-In? 
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)  
 

No 

Has the relevant Portfolio Holder been 
informed? 
 

Yes 
 

District Wards Affected 
 

All 

Links to Corporate Plan priorities or 
Policy Framework 
 

All  

 
 
8 Document Information 
 

Appendix No 
 

Title 

 
APPENDIX 1 

 
Nomination Form for Bolsover Honours 
 

Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied 
on to a material extent when preparing the report.  They must be listed in the 
section below.  If the report is going to Cabinet (NEDDC) or Executive (BDC) 
you must provide copies of the background papers) 

None 

Report Author 
 

Contact Number 

Nicola Calver, Governance Manager 
 

01246 217753 

  

28



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bolsover Honours  

NOMINATION FORM  
HONORARY ALDERMAN 

 
 
 

Please clearly print of type the following details about the person you are nominating. 
Please ensure all sections of the form are completed before submission, if you are 

unsure on how to complete the form please contact Nicola Calver on 01246 217753. 
Please only submit one nomination form for a nominee.  

 
 

 

SECTION A – YOUR NOMINEE  

Surname                ______________________________  

Forename(s)          ______________________________  

Title                        ______________________________  

Address                 ______________________________  

                               ______________________________  

                               ______________________________  

Contact Number   ______________________________  

Email Address      ______________________________  

Nationality             ______________________________  

 

 

 

In line with data protection, the information supplied through the application will be treated 

in confidence and will only be used by those involved in the administration of Honours.  

Bolsover Coat of Arms  

29



 

SECTION B – THE RECOMMENDATION  

(N.B. Any recommendations should be made in the strictest of confidence without the nominee’s knowledge)  

Please state the length of service your nominee has given to Bolsover District 

Council as a Councillor    

______________________________ 

 

Please tell us what they have done to receive this recognition during their period of 

office. Give as much detail as possible but keep the statement to a maximum of 250 

words. (Please continue onto a second sheet and attach if required)  

_______________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Please state why you think that this is exceptional and how this links to the themes 

within Bolsover District Councils ambitions: 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

30



 

SECTION C – PERSON MAKING THE RECOMMENDATION  

(N.B. Recommendations must be made by a serving Member of Bolsover District Council)  

 

Name            ______________________________  

Signature     ______________________________  

Date              ______________________________  

 

What connection do you have with the person you are nominating? 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

Signature     ______________________________  

Date              ______________________________  

 

 

SECTION D – RECOMMENDATION SPONSORED BY  

(N.B. Recommendations must be sponsored by a serving Member of Bolsover District Council)  

Name            ______________________________  

Signature     ______________________________  

Date              ______________________________  

 

 

 

 

 

Please send this completed form to:  

PRIVATE AND CONFIDENTIAL  
HONOURS  
C/O Nicola Calver  
Governance  
Bolsover District Council  
The Arc  
High Street  
Clowne  
S43 4JY  
 

nicola.calver@ne-derbyshire.gov.uk  

31

mailto:nicola.calver@ne-derbyshire.gov.uk


 
 

Bolsover District Council  
 

Council 
 

19th February 2020 

 
Medium Term Financial Plan 2020/21 to 2023/24 

 
Report of Councillor Clive Moesby, Portfolio Holder for Finance + Resources 

 
This report is public 

 
Purpose of the Report 
  

 To seek approval of the proposed budget for 2020/21 for the General Fund, 
Housing Revenue Account and Capital Programme as part of the Council’s 
Medium Term Financial Plan covering the years 2020/21 to 2023/24.  
 

 To provide Elected Members with an overview of the Council’s financial position 
in order to inform the decision making process.  
 

1 Report Details 
 

Introduction 
 
1.1 This report presents the following budgets for Members to consider: 
 

 General Fund – Appendix 1 and 2 

 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) – Appendix 3 

 Capital Programme – Appendix 4 
 
In particular financial projections are provided for: 
 

 2019/20 Current Budget Position – this is the current year budget, revised to 
take account of changes during the financial year that will end on 31st  
March 2020. 
 

 2020/21 Original Budget – this is the proposed budget for the next financial 
year, on which the Council Tax will be based, and will commence from 1st 
April 2020. 
 

 2020/21 Original Budget – this includes proposed increases to rents and fees 
and charges for the next financial year for the Housing Revenue Account. 

 

 2021/22 to 2023/24 Financial Plan - In accordance with good practice the 
Council agrees its annual budgets within the context of a Medium Term 
Financial Plan (MTFP).  This includes financial projections in respect of the 
next three financial years.  

 
32

Agenda Item 12



1.2 This report and the appendices were considered by Budget Scrutiny Committee 
at its meeting on 30th January 2020 and by Executive at its meeting on 10th 
February 2020. 
 
General Fund 
 
2019/20 Current Budget 

1.3 In February 2019, Members agreed a budget for 2019/20 to determine Council 
Tax.  The original budget showed a deficit of £0.083m.  Throughout the year 
budgets have been actively managed with savings removed from the budget 
once they have been agreed. 
 

1.4 The Revised Budget was considered by Budget Scrutiny on 28th November and 
Executive at its meeting on the 16th December 2019.  There have been no 
changes to the budget position since this time.   
 

1.5 The final in-year surplus will be dependent on the actual financial performance 
out-turning in line with the revised budgets as there may be further costs and/or 
savings identified as the year progresses.  Whilst these estimates reflect the 
position at the time of setting there can be some volatility from the budget to the 
outturn position.   
 

1.6 It was agreed that the estimated surplus of £0.261m, be allowed to increase the 
General Fund balance and be utilised to mitigate the expected increase in the 
contribution to the Local Government Pension Scheme over the next three 
financial years. 
 
2020/21 Original Budget and 2021/22 to 2023/24 Financial Plan 

1.7 The financial projection for 2020/21 to 2022/23 was approved by Members in 
February 2019.  The 2019/20 budget process has updated those projections and 
established a base for 2023/24. 
 

1.8 The proposed budget for 2020/21 currently shows a deficit of £0.290m.  Based 
on current information the requirement to achieve financial savings for future 
years is 2021/22 £0.441m; 2022/23 £0.594m; 2023/24 £0.682m (Appendix 1). 
Appendix 2 details the net cost of each cost centre by Directorate. 

 
1.9 The table on the following page shows the updated figures resulting from the 

budget process together with estimates of future assumptions for vacancy 
management, tax base growth and council tax increases.  Also included is the 
funding from the general fund balance of the expected increase in the 
contribution to the Local Government Pension Scheme over the next three 
financial years. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 33



 
 

 
1.10 The main factors taken into account in developing the Council’s financial plans 

are set out within the sections below.  
 
Level of Government Funding 

1.11 The current financial year 2019/20, is the final year of the four year settlement 
announced in December 2015.  The Spending Review 2019 was originally 
planned to cover the three-year period 2020/21 – 2022/23.  It has been widely 
publicised that the three-year Spending Review and its expected changes have 
been delayed for one year. 

 
1.12 Therefore the Spending Review 2019 is effectively an extension to the four-year 

settlement that covered the period 2016/17 – 2019/20.  With a delay to both the 
Fair Funding Review and reform of business rates, combined with a one-year 
spending review, 2020/21 is a roll-over settlement.  Funding from Government 
has broadly been rolled-over either in cash terms from 2019/20 or increased in 
line with the change in the business rate multiplier. 
 

1.13 The Spending Review 2020, which is likely to cover the years 2021/22, 2022/23 
and 2023/24 should be announced in the autumn of 2020. 
 

1.14 The continued uncertainty surrounding local government funding means we have 
had to make some significant assumptions for future years as follows:  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

2019/20 
Revised 
Budget 

£000 

2020/21 
Forecast 

 
£000 

2021/22 
Forecast 

 
£000 

2022/23 
Forecast 

 
£000 

2023/24 
Forecast 

 
£000 

General Fund (surplus)/Budget 
Shortfall 

(261) 290 441 594 682 

Estimate of one-off vacancies 
each year 

0 (100) (100) (100) (100) 

Estimate of taxbase growth 0 0 (40) (80) (120) 

Assumption for future council tax 
increases 

0 (111) (220) (332) (443) 

Pension costs to be funded by 
19/20 t/f to GF balance 

0 (79) (81) (82) (19) 

Closing Budget 
(surplus)/Budget Shortfall 

(261) 0 0 0 0 

34



 
New Homes Bonus 
 

1.15 There have been many changes made over recent years by the Government, to 
the way New Homes Bonus grant operates.  Most of the changes made since 
2017/18 have meant a loss of income for us.  We knew when we carried out the 
budget process last year that during 2019 the Government would be consulting 
on the future of New Homes Bonus grant.  We were cautious in our estimates for 
grant to be received as we suspected the scheme would be ended in 2020. 
 

1.16 As we have effectively had a bonus year for New Homes Bonus to be received 
with the delay of its abolition and the roll-over from 2019/20, we have been able 
to include an extra £0.343m in grant income for 2020/21. 
 

1.17 For 2021/22 onwards we have reverted back to our estimates from last year as 
they are still true.  New Homes Bonus grant is predicted to end by 2023/24.  We 
have therefore not included any new allocation for any year after 2020/21.    We 
have included legacy payments from 2018/19 and 2019/20 only.  We have 
estimated we will receive a share of the New Homes Bonus returned funding pot 
of £0.101m for 2021/22, £0.145m for 2022/23 and £0.192m for 2023/24, all to be 
received in that year only.  
 
Fair Funding Review  

1.18 Although delayed as mentioned earlier, it is still not known with any clarity what 
the impact of the Fair Funding Review will be.  Last year, initial modelling 
showed that the recalculated Settlement Funding Assessment (SFA) was 
redirecting resources to those based on “need” which would impact 
negatively on most shire districts. 
 

1.19 The risk of losses from the Fair Funding Review are also much greater for 
district councils because of our ability to raise council tax. This puts a greater 
burden on the local decision making with regards council tax setting each 
year. 
 

1.20 It has been suggested that the parliamentary majority resulting from the recent 
election, might change the dynamics in the Fair Funding Review.  It is too early 
however, to tell how or if the change in the places the government represents will 
result in a change in the outcome of the Fair Funding Review. 
 

1.21 For now, the lack of any concrete figures means we have not been able to 
include an estimate of the likely impact of the Fair Funding Review in the 
budgets.  When information is received to enable a value to be attributed to 
the changes, Members will be updated at the first opportunity.  
 
Business Rates  

1.22 As with New Homes Bonus, we have effectively had a bonus year for Business 
Rates due to the one year delay too.  We have been able to include an extra 
£0.519m income for 2020/21. 

 
 
 
 
 35



 
1.23 For future years although delayed, the implications of Business Rates Retention 

Reform have not changed.  The issues are around resetting our business rates 
baseline and therefore potentially wiping out any growth since 2013/14 and also 
changing the share for business rates from 50% to 75% from 2021/22 (although 
increases are likely to go to county councils). 
 

1.24 The figures for Business Rates were revised last year to include estimates of 
likely changes to our baseline funding level information, tariff amounts and the 
impact of a business rate reset.  It must be stressed these were initial estimates 
of the changes and are subject to change but they remain valid again this year. 
As protection against further negative adjustments, no growth in business rates 
has been included for any year.  During this years’ budget process figures have 
only been amended by the change in the business rates multiplier.  This has 
resulted in a reduction of income to the financial plan of 2021/22 £0.123m and 
2022/23 £0.141m. 

 
Revenue Support Grant 

1.25 The one year delay has meant a further year of receiving Revenue Support 
Grant.  We will receive £1.190m in this bonus year of receiving the grant.  No 
grant will be received from 2021/22 onwards.  
 
Mitigating losses in Government Funding 

1.26 To help mitigate losses caused by funding changes the NNDR Growth Protection 
Reserve was created a number of years ago.  Originally this included transfers of 
income from the general fund when Business Rates income calculations were 
updated for new growth.   
 

1.27 This meant income received would be more than initially estimated for that year 
and the extra amount to be received would be transferred into the reserve, 
almost as a savings account to be returned back to the general fund when 
income was reduced in future years. 
 

1.28 In recent years extra income received from all sources of Government funding 
mentioned above have been transferred into the reserve if the budget for that 
year has already been in surplus when the extra funding has been realised.   
 

1.29 The balance accumulated has meant we are able to use the reserve to even out 
the government funding losses over the life of the current MTFP.  A transfer from 
general fund to the reserve will be made in 2020/21 of £0.336m.  Latest 
estimates for transfers back to general fund are £1.027m 2021/22, £1.033m 
2022/23 and £1.246m in 2023/24.  A balance of £0.481m remains in the reserve 
for use in 2024/25. 
 

1.30 When savings are found through the Transformation Programme the transfers 
from the reserve are reduced.   
 
Expenditure, income levels and efficiencies 

1.31 In developing the financial projections covering the period 2020/21 to 2023/24, 
officers have made a number of assumptions.  The major assumptions are: 
 
 
 36



 

 For 2020/21 to 2023/24, 2% has been included in staffing budgets as an 
estimate for a pay award. 

 Employer superannuation contributions for 2020/21 to 2023/24, a 1% 
increase on the 2019/20 cost has been assumed. 

 Inflation specific budgets such as energy costs and fuel have been amended 
to reflect anticipated price changes. 

 With respect to planning fees, a base level for income has been included for 
all future years of £0.400m.  The rules of the Government’s 20% increase to 
planning fees means we have to set-aside the additional 20% income we 
receive, to be spent specifically on the planning function. 

 Fees and charges – service specific increases as agreed by Members. 

 Brexit – no provision has been made in the budget for costs that may be 
incurred.  Any significant impact will be dealt with in a future report, if 
necessary with financing from reserves and a small Government grant we 
have already received of £0.034m. 

 
1.32 Additionally, the Council’s transformation programme seeks to contribute to the 

financial challenges faced through the progression of innovative and forward 
thinking ideas. 

 
Council Tax Implications 
 

 Council Tax Base 
1.33 In preparation for the budget, the Chief Financial Officer under delegated powers 

has determined the Tax Base at Band D for 2020/21 as 22,169.60. 
 
Council Tax Options 

1.34 The Council’s part of the Council Tax bill in 2019/20 was set at £176.29 for a 
Band D property.  This was an increase of 2.99%. 
 

1.35 The Council has a range of options when setting the Council Tax.  The 
Government indicate what upper limit they consider acceptable.  For 2020/21 
District Councils are permitted to increase their share of the Council Tax by the 
greater of 2% or £5 without triggering the need to hold a referendum.  This is a 
reduction compared to the maximum percentage increase allowed in 2019/20 of 
3%. 
 

1.36 The table below shows some of the options and the extra revenue generated. 
 

Increase 
New 

Band D 
£ 

Annual 
Increase       

£ 

Weekly 
Increase          

£ 

Extra 
Revenue 

£ 

1.00% 178.05 1.76 0.03  39,023 

2.00% 179.81 3.52 0.07  78,105 

2.83% 181.29 5.00 0.10 110,789 

 
 
 
 37



 
 
1.37 The level of increase each year affects the base for future years and the 

proposed increase for 2020/21 is 2.83%, generating additional revenue of 
£110,789. 

 
 Financial Reserves – General Fund 
 

1.38 The Council’s main uncommitted Financial Reserves are the General Fund 
Working Balance of £2.0m and the uncommitted element of the Transformation 
Reserve of £2.159m.  Due to the uncertainty surrounding local authority income 
and the fact that the Council has reduced budgets to a minimal level, it is 
important that the Council continues to review whether we have an acceptable 
General Fund Working Balance.   
 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 

 
2019/20 Current Budget 

1.39 In February 2019, Members agreed a budget for 2019/20.  Rent levels were set 
in line with Government regulations with a reduction of 1%, effective from 1st April 
2019.  HRA fees and charges were also set, effective from the same date. 
 

1.40 The Revised Budget was considered by Budget Scrutiny on 28th November and 
Executive at its meeting on the 16th December 2019.  There have been no 
changes to the budget position since this time. 
 

1.41 A surplus of £0.155m was estimated, which was £0.132m higher than the current 
budget of £0.023m.  It was agreed that the estimated surplus of £0.155m, be 
allowed to increase the HRA balance and be utilised to mitigate the expected 
increase in the contribution to the Local Government Pension Scheme over the 
next three financial years. 
 
2020/21 Original Budget and 2021/22 to 2023/24 Financial Plan 

1.42 The proposed budget for 2020/21 currently shows a surplus of £0.106m.  Based 
on current information the surplus for future years is 2021/22 £0.047m; 2022/23 
£0.087m; 2023/24 £0.047m (Appendix 3). The proposal is to transfer the surplus 
into the HRA Revenue Reserve in all years. 
 

1.43 The HRA budget is made up of the same assumptions as the General Fund 
budget for staff costs, superannuation costs and inflation.  There are however, 
some assumptions that are specific to the HRA.  The main factors taken into 
account in developing the Council’s financial plans for the HRA are set out within 
the sections below. 
 
Level of Council Dwelling Rents 

1.44 The MHCLG Policy Statement on rents for social housing – published February 
2019 states, ‘In October 2017, the government announced its intention to set a 
long-term rent deal for both local authority landlords and housing associations.  
This would permit annual rent increases on both social rent and affordable rent 
properties of up to CPI (Consumer Price Index) plus 1 percent from 2020, for a 
period of at least five years.’ 
 

38



1.45 Therefore for 2020/21 the income for dwelling rents has been included in the 
budget at CPI rate 1.7% plus 1%.  For future years it has been assumed the 
same policy will apply. 
 
Fees and Charges 

1.46 Although the main source of income for the HRA is property rents, the HRA is 
also dependent for its financial sustainability on a range of other charges.  These 
charges are set on the principle that wherever possible charges for services 
should reflect the cost of providing those services. 
 

1.47 A schedule of the proposed charges is set out at Appendix 3, table 1.  For 
2020/21 in most cases the charges are recommended to be increased by CPI 
1.7% plus 1%. 
 
Financial Reserves - HRA 
 

1.48 The Council’s main uncommitted Financial Reserves are the Housing Revenue 
Account Working Balance of £2m.  In addition to the Working Balance there are 
further reserves for the HRA used only to fund the Council’s HRA capital 
programme.  These are the Major Repairs Reserve, New Build Reserve, Vehicle 
Repair and Renewal Reserve and Development Reserve. 
 
Capital Programme 
 

1.49 There will be three separate reports to Council on 19th February 2020 concerning 
the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy, Investment Strategy and Capital 
Strategy.  The Capital Strategy report will consider capital financing such as 
borrowing which enables the proposed capital programme budgets to proceed. 
 
2019/20 Current Budget  

1.50 In February 2019, Members approved a Capital Programme in respect of 
2019/20 to 2022/23.  Scheme delays and technical problems can cause 
expenditure to slip into following years and schemes can be added or extended 
as a result of securing additional external funding.  Where capital expenditure 
slipped into 2019/20, the equivalent amount of funding was not applied during 
2018/19 and is therefore available in 2019/20 to meet the delayed payments. 
 

1.51 The Revised Capital Programme was considered by Budget Scrutiny on 28th 
November and Executive at its meeting on the 16th December 2019.  There have 
been no changes to the budget position since this time. 
 
General Fund Capital Programme 2020/21 to 2023/24 

1.52 The proposed Capital Programme for the General Fund totals £1.868m for 
2020/21; £2.465m for 2021/22; £1.954m for 2022/23 and £2.870m for 2023/24 
(Appendix 4). 
 
Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme 2020/21 to 2023/24 

1.53 The proposed Capital Programme for the Housing Revenue Account totals 
£4.172m for 2020/21; £4.177m for 2021/22; £5.072m for 2022/23 and £5.288m 
for 2023/24 (Appendix 4). 
 
 
 39



 
1.54 A list of all the schemes and associated funding are attached as Appendix 4 to 

this report. 
 
Robustness of the Estimates 
 

1.55 Under the provisions of the Local Government Act 2003, the Council’s Section 
151 Officer is required to comment on the robustness of the estimates made and 
on the adequacy of the financial reserves. 
 

1.56 The Council’s Section 151 Officer (The Head of Finance and Resources) is 
satisfied that the estimates are considered to be robust, employee costs are 
based on the approved establishment, investment income is based on the advice 
of the Council’s Treasury Management Advisors and income targets are 
considered to be achievable. 

 
1.57 Likewise the Section 151 Officer is satisfied that the levels of reserves are 

considered to be adequate to fund planned expenditure and potential issues and 
risks that face the Council. 
 

2 Conclusions and Reasons for Recommendations 
 
2.1 This report presents a budget for approval by Council.  It seeks to ensure 

approval to budgets in respect of the General Fund, the Housing Revenue 
Account and the Capital Programme. 

 
3 Consultation and Equality Impact 
 
3.1 The Council is required to consult with stakeholders on the proposed budget. 

This consultation is part of the Council’s service planning framework and has 
effectively been taking place throughout the financial year. These mechanisms 
include active participation in the Local Strategic Partnership, a range of 
meetings with local groups and associations and a performance management 
framework.  These meetings help to inform the Council’s understanding of what 
is expected of it by our local communities. 
 

3.2 There are no equality impact implications from this report. 
  

4 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Alternative options are considered throughout the report.  
 
5 Implications 
 
5.1 Finance and Risk Implications 
 
5.1.1 Financial issues and implications are covered in the relevant sections throughout 

this report. 
 
 
 
 
 40



 
5.1.2 The Council has a risk management strategy and associated framework in place 

and the Strategic Risk Register is regularly reviewed through the Council’s 
performance management framework. Strategic risks along with the mitigation in 
place to ensure such risks are manageable are reported to the Audit Committee 
on a quarterly basis. The risk of not achieving a balanced budget is outlined as a 
key risk within the Council’s Strategic Risk Register and is therefore closely 
monitored through these practices and reporting processes.  

 
5.2 Legal Implications including Data Protection 
 
5.2.1 The Council is legally obliged to approve a budget prior to the commencement of 

the new financial year in April 2020. This report together with the associated 
budget timetable has been prepared in order to comply with our legal obligations. 

 
5.2.2 The recommended budget for the General Fund, Housing Revenue Account and 

Capital Programme comply with the Council’s legal obligation to agree a 
balanced budget. 

 
5.2.3 There are no Data Protection issues arising directly from this report.  
 
5.3 Human Resources Implications 
 
5.3.1  These are covered in the main report and supporting Appendices where 

appropriate. 
 
6 Recommendations 
 
6.1      That in the view of the Chief Financial Officer, that the estimates included in the 

Medium Term Financial Plan 2020/21 to 2023/24 are robust and that the level of 
financial reserves whilst at minimum levels are adequate, be accepted. 

 
6.2 That officers report back to Executive and to the Budget Scrutiny Committee on a 

quarterly basis regarding the overall position in respect of the Council’s budgets.  
These reports to include updates on achieving savings and efficiencies for 
2020/21 and future years.   

 
 GENERAL FUND 
6.3 A Council Tax increase of £5.00 is levied in respect of a notional Band D property 

(2.83%). 
 
6.4 The Medium Term Financial Plan in respect of the General Fund as set out in 

Appendix 1 of this report be approved as the Revised Budget 2019/20, as the 
Original Budget in respect of 2020/21, and the financial projection in respect of 
2021/22 to 2023/24.  

 
6.5 That any further under spend in respect of 2019/20 is transferred to the Council’s 

General Fund Reserves. 
 
 
 
 
 41



 
6.6 On the basis that income from Planning Fees may exceed £0.500m in 2019/20, 

the Chief Executive in consultation with the Leader be granted delegated powers 
to authorise such additional resources as are necessary to effectively manage 
the resultant increase in workload. 
 

 HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 
6.7 That Council sets its rent levels in line with government policy, increasing rent 

levels by  CPI (1.7%) plus 1% to apply from 1 April 2020.  
 
6.8 That the increases in respect of other charges as outlined in Appendix 3 Table 1 

be implemented with effect from 1 April 2020.  
 

6.9 The Medium Term Financial Plan in respect of the Housing Revenue Account as 
set out in Appendix 3 of this report be approved as the Revised Budget in 
respect of 2019/20, as the Original Budget in respect of 2020/21, and the 
financial projection in respect of 2021/22 to 2023/24. 

 
6.10 That under spends in respect of 2020/21 to 2023/24 are transferred to the HRA 

Revenue Reserve.   
 

 CAPITAL PROGRAMME 
6.11 That the Capital Programme as set out in Appendix 4 be approved as the 

Revised Budget in respect of 2019/20, and as the Approved Programme for 
2020/21 to 2023/24. 

 
6.12 That the Director of Development be granted delegated powers in consultation 

with the Portfolio Member and the Asset Management group to approve the 
utilisation of the £260,000 of AMP Refurbishment Work allocation, with such 
approvals to be reported back to Executive through the Quarterly Budget 
Monitoring Report. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 42



 
7 Decision Information 
 

Is the decision a Key Decision? 

A Key Decision is an executive decision 
which has a significant impact on two or 
more District wards or which results in 
income or expenditure to the Council above 
the following thresholds:               

Yes 

BDC:     Revenue - £75,000    
Capital - £150,000     

NEDDC:  

 

Revenue - £100,000  
Capital - £250,000     

 Please indicate which threshold applies 

Is the decision subject to Call-In? 
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)  

Yes 

Has the relevant Portfolio Holder been 
informed 

Yes 

District Wards Affected All 

Links to Corporate Plan priorities or 
Policy Framework 

All  

 
 
 
8 Document Information 
 

Appendix No 
 

Title 

1 
2 
3 
3 table 1 
4 

General Fund Summary 
General Fund Detail 
Housing Revenue Account 
HRA – Fees and Charges 2020/21 
Capital Programme Summary 

Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied 
on to a material extent when preparing the report.  They must be listed in the 
section below.  If the report is going to Cabinet (NEDDC) or Executive (BDC) 
you must provide copies of the background papers) 

 

Report Author Contact Number 

Head of Finance and Resources 2458 

 

43



GENERAL FUND  SUMMARY

Revised Original

Description Budget Budget Forecast Forecast Forecast

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

£ £ £ £ £

People Directorate 10,274,260 10,559,682 10,324,024 10,567,276 10,821,735 

Place Directorate 3,419,339 3,218,301 3,282,396 3,329,496 3,439,877 

Recharges to HRA and Capital (3,738,619) (3,905,014) (3,947,564) (4,012,277) (4,092,922)

S106 Expenditure

People 279,855 188,663 8,633 7,644 25,858 

Place 420,106 113,390 0 0 0 

Net Cost of Services 10,654,941 10,175,022 9,667,489 9,892,139 10,194,548 

Debt Charges 956,778 844,473 858,696 629,456 610,780 

Investment Interest (294,639) (303,739) (278,742) (272,551) (287,938)

11,317,080 10,715,756 10,247,443 10,249,044 10,517,390 

Appropriations:

Contributions to Reserves 406,640 1,357,667 226,667 171,667 230,667 

Contribution from Earmarked Reserves (629,146) (391,697) (136,089) (86,265) (87,743)

Contribution (from)/to NNDR Growth 

Protection Reserve
134,531 336,000 (1,027,000) (1,033,000) (1,246,000)

Contribution from Grant Accounts (52,991) (5,320) (5,320) (5,320) (5,320)

Contribution (from)/to Holding Accounts (536,476) (393,258) (8,633) (71,919) (71,931)

Contribution from S106 Holding A/cs (799,961) (302,053) (74,907) (7,644) (25,858)

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 9,839,677 11,317,095 9,222,161 9,216,563 9,311,205 

Parish Precepts 2,901,779 2,901,779 2,901,779 2,901,779 2,901,779 

Council Tax Support Grant - Parish 167,933 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL SPENDING REQUIREMENT 12,909,389 14,218,874 12,123,940 12,118,342 12,212,984 

Revenue Support Grant (1,169,290) (1,190,000) 0 0 0 

Business Rates Retention total (4,412,429) (4,982,049) (4,417,549) (4,474,549) (4,529,249)

New Homes Bonus Grant total (811,095) (947,182) (454,900) (240,083) (192,000)

COUNCIL TAX - BDC precept (3,875,302) (3,908,279) (3,908,279) (3,908,279) (3,908,279)

Council tax - Parish element from above (2,901,779) (2,901,779) (2,901,779) (2,901,779) (2,901,779)

TOTAL FUNDING (13,169,895) (13,929,289) (11,682,507) (11,524,690) (11,531,307)

FUNDING GAP / (SURPLUS) (260,506) 289,585 441,433 593,652 681,677 

APPENDIX 1

44



General Fund Detail
List of net budgets per cost centre per directorate Revised Original   

Budget Budget Forecast Forecast Forecast

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

£ £ £ £ £

G001 Audit Services (G001) 104,602 119,350 119,350 119,350 119,350

G002 I.C.T. (G002) 806,477 809,821 810,974 812,170 813,370

G003 Communications (G003) 249,871 263,158 251,778 240,430 244,166

G005
Joint Chief Executive Officer 50% People 

(G005)
41,151 41,410 41,441 42,266 43,110

G006 Partnership, Stategy + Policy (G006) 435,012 468,185 391,110 399,341 404,653

G014 Customer Contact Service (G014) 754,339 775,698 797,148 817,494 833,162

G015 Strategy + Performance (G015) 120,779 122,968 127,372 131,083 133,606

G024 Street Cleansing (G024) 290,113 322,185 334,010 340,218 347,378

G028 Waste Collection (G028) 907,791 936,305 962,425 980,471 1,006,992

G032 Grounds Maintenance (G032) 668,118 673,410 699,028 716,931 734,101

G033 Vehicle Fleet (G033) 740,370 780,058 796,941 809,864 826,391

G038 Concessionary Fares + TV Licenses (G038) (10,097) (10,097) (10,097) (10,097) (10,097)

G040 Corporate Management (G040) 144,827 147,819 149,152 154,818 156,382

G041 Non Distributed Costs (G041) 697,651 694,582 700,267 705,952 711,637

G044 Financial Services (G044) 257,846 309,681 315,833 322,034 328,381

G052 Human Resources (G052) 211,919 218,995 223,204 227,340 230,817

G054 Electoral Registration (G054) 153,558 180,466 187,499 187,313 190,198

G055
Democratic Representation + Management 

(G055)
530,961 514,939 514,754 515,138 515,467

G056 Land Charges (G056) (4,432) (2,928) (1,972) (1,106) (187)

G057 District Council Elections (G057) 84,508 5,000 0 25,000 53,000

G058 Democratic Services (G058) 183,962 214,074 218,093 223,618 227,711

G060 Legal Services (G060) 229,385 224,003 229,478 233,926 238,487

G061 Bolsover Wellness Programme (G061) 64,583 73,680 79,420 83,250 86,346

G062 Extreme Wheels (G062) 790 (4,066) (2,623) (1,849) (1,063)

G064 Bolsover Sports (G064) 138,016 139,360 143,634 146,934 149,987

G065 Parks, Playgrounds + Open Spaces (G065) 48,541 36,873 37,541 40,834 40,808

G066 Coach Bolsover (G066) 2,000 0 0 0 0

G069 Arts Projects (G069) 46,199 48,386 49,668 50,481 51,310

G070
Outdoor Sports + Recreation Facilities 

(G070)
22,805 19,436 19,743 20,052 20,371

G072 Leisure Services Mgmt + Admin (G072) 257,219 262,858 267,123 271,125 275,298

G084
Head of Partnerships and Transformation 

(G084)
34,717 36,957 38,747 40,586 41,395

G086 Alliance (G086) 7,250 7,250 7,250 7,250 7,250

G094 Joint Strategic Director - People (G094) 50,821 54,068 56,226 57,781 58,934

G097 Groundwork + Drainage Operations (G097) 64,547 67,527 70,038 71,909 73,364

G100 Benefits (G100) 358,358 515,819 561,884 602,531 638,729

G103 Council Tax / NNDR (G103) 364,017 390,428 402,945 413,015 423,151

APPENDIX 2

45



General Fund Detail
List of net budgets per cost centre per directorate Revised Original   

Budget Budget Forecast Forecast Forecast

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

£ £ £ £ £

APPENDIX 2

G104 Sundry Debtors (G104) 21,858 0 0 0 0

G111 Shared Procurement (G111) 44,847 47,790 49,059 50,190 51,352

G115 One Public Estate (G115) 21,032 0 0 0 0

G117 Payroll (G117) 71,981 75,318 76,879 78,449 80,060

G123 Riverside Depot (G123) 166,330 164,006 167,335 170,698 174,152

G124 Street Servs Mgmt + Admin (G124) 68,800 75,314 76,862 78,421 80,009

G125 S106 Percent for Art (G125) 56,979 10,176 0 0 0

G126
S106 Formal and Informal Recreation 

(G126)
164,148 30,914 8,633 7,644 25,858

G129
Bolsover Apprenticeship Programme 

(G129)
10,023 (3,012) 0 0 0

G146
Pleasley Vale Outdoor Activity Centre 

(G146)
46,524 56,541 57,911 59,306 60,729

G148 Trade Waste (G148) (124,600) (124,600) (124,600) (124,600) (124,600)

G149 Recycling (G149) 143,182 136,843 140,369 143,995 147,727

G155 Customer Services (G155) 29,829 30,693 31,332 31,974 32,633

G157 Controlling Migration Fund (G157) 485,370 133,729 0 0 0

G161 Rent Rebates (G161) (29,662) (26,532) (25,714) (23,193) (21,953)

G162 Rent Allowances (G162) 22,978 (12,985) (27,547) (33,629) (37,606)

G164 Support Recharges (G164) (3,738,619) (3,905,014) (3,947,564) (4,012,277) (4,092,922)

G168 Multifunctional Printers (G168) 42,776 39,900 39,900 39,900 39,900

G170 S106 Outdoor Sports (G170) 58,728 147,573 0 0 0

G179 School Sports Programme (G179) (4,171) 511 526 536 546

G180 Special Events (G180) 350 0 0 0 0

G181 STEP (G181) 775 0 0 0 0

G182 SHIFT (G182) 489 0 0 0 0

G183 Netball (G183) 64 0 0 0 0

G192 Scrutiny (G192) 22,109 22,125 22,558 22,996 23,443

G195 Head of Corporate Governance (G195) 37,100 38,460 39,243 40,035 40,844

G197 Head of Finance and Resources (G197) 63,832 68,171 65,070 75,220 78,913

G199 Head of Street Scene (G199) 36,792 37,516 38,273 39,046 39,834

G207 Balanceability (G207) 203 54 54 54 54

G216 Raising Aspirations (G216) 20,426 51,250 0 0 0

G218 Namibia Bound (G218) (7,301) 0 0 0 0

G220 Locality Funding (G220) (76,003) 0 0 0 0

G228 Go Active Clowne Leisure Centre (G228) (39,693) 13,956 26,814 48,351 69,610

G238 HR Health + Safety (G238) 90,946 91,976 80,316 72,074 72,133

G241 Working Together for Older People (G241) 8,712 0 0 0 0

G244 Bolsover Business Growth Fund (G244) 39,788 185,000 0 0 0

46



General Fund Detail
List of net budgets per cost centre per directorate Revised Original   

Budget Budget Forecast Forecast Forecast

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

£ £ £ £ £

APPENDIX 2

Total for People Directorate 6,815,496 6,843,331 6,385,093 6,562,643 6,754,671

G004
Joint Chief Executive Officer 50% Place 

(G004)
41,153 41,413 41,444 42,269 43,113

G007
Community Safety - Crime Reduction 

(G007)
46,420 58,140 59,478 60,827 62,206

G010 Neighbourhood Management (G010) 90,220 91,911 94,309 96,777 99,319

G013 Community Action Network (G013) 304,044 266,951 273,543 270,301 276,223

G017 Private Sector Housing Renewal (G017) 54,701 64,308 65,927 67,597 69,320

G020 Public Health (G020) (68,000) (70,000) (70,000) (70,000) (70,000)

G021 Pollution Reduction (G021) 164,677 167,116 171,563 177,233 182,171

G022 Health + Safety (G022) (250) 0 0 0 0

G023 Pest Control (G023) 34,794 34,893 37,353 37,985 38,630

G025 Food Safety (G025) 122,035 120,845 123,826 126,892 130,047

G026 Animal Welfare (G026) 94,238 83,648 98,920 88,138 90,565

G027 Emergency Planning (G027) 32,128 16,144 16,144 16,144 16,144

G036
Environmental Health Mgmt & Admin 

(G036)
190,744 188,246 192,109 196,068 199,846

G043 Joint Strategic Director - Place (G043) 53,610 54,643 55,724 56,827 57,953

G046 Homelessness (G046) 166,728 170,050 172,501 174,982 177,513

G048 Town Centre Housing (G048) (10,600) (10,600) (10,600) (10,600) (10,600)

G053 Licensing (G053) (327) 2,068 4,486 6,624 8,817

G073 Planning Policy (G073) 361,826 267,654 274,273 279,940 285,589

G074 Planning Development Control (G074) (22,442) 24,704 11,778 8,880 16,753

G076 Planning Enforcement (G076) 98,079 118,758 123,435 128,158 131,461

G079 Planning Services Mgmt & Admin (G079) 21,207 22,137 22,593 23,048 23,514

G080 Engineering Services (G080) 97,067 99,949 101,752 103,602 105,511

G081 Drainage Services (G081) 0 0 0 0 0

G082 Tourism Promotion + Development (G082) 34,897 39,076 13,561 0 0

G083 Building Control Consortium (G083) 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000

G085 Economic Development (G085) 28,815 29,425 29,425 29,425 29,425

G087 HS2 Costs (G087)

G088 Derbyshire Economic Partnership (G088) 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000

G089 Premises Development (G089) (69,408) (71,520) (71,146) (70,803) (70,438)

G090 Pleasley Vale Mills (G090) (162,278) (169,835) (170,727) (168,519) (166,207)

G091 CISWO Duke St Building (G091) 10,879 0 0 0 0

G092 Pleasley Vale Electricity Trading (G092) (40,000) (37,212) (34,377) (31,493) (28,560)

G095 Estates + Property (G095) 624,618 672,263 689,454 704,594 718,596

G096 Building Cleaning (General) (G096) 95,681 99,168 101,212 103,219 110,604

47



General Fund Detail
List of net budgets per cost centre per directorate Revised Original   

Budget Budget Forecast Forecast Forecast

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

£ £ £ £ £

APPENDIX 2

G099 Catering (G099) 500 500 500 500 500

G106 Housing Anti Social Behaviour (G106) 97,411 106,414 109,787 112,228 114,521

G109
Director of Development (temporary 

directorate)
23,425 99,265 104,245 109,384 114,685

G110
Asst. Director of Development (temporary 

directorate)
17,456 69,129 72,615 76,211 79,922

G113 Parenting Practitioner (G113) 33,982 36,093 37,062 38,039 39,036

G132 Planning Conservation (G132) 45,706 34,169 33,084 33,755 34,442

G133 The Tangent Business Hub (G133) (40,921) (66,687) (64,955) (63,225) (61,446)

G135 Domestic Violence Worker (G135) 41,998 43,099 43,911 44,732 45,570

G138 Bolsover Town Centre Consultation (G138) 34,163 0 0 0 0

G142 Community Safety - CCTV (G142) 8,515 0 0 0 0

G143 Housing Strategy (G143) 26,943 43,226 32,507 30,194 30,755

G144 Enabling (Housing) (G144) 25,584 26,109 26,646 27,195 27,754

G151 Street Lighting (G151) 31,000 31,442 31,892 32,349 32,817

G153 Housing Advice (G153) 12,909 13,276 13,547 13,820 14,100

G156 The Arc (G156) 136,522 110,034 114,285 118,537 122,922

G167 Facilities Management (G167) 10,611 10,338 10,338 10,338 10,338

G169 Closed Churchyards (G169) 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000

G172 S106 Affordable Housing (G172) 1,116 0 0 0 0

G176 Affordable Warmth (G176) 34,058 20,922 21,264 21,614 21,970

G188 Cotton Street Contact Centre (G188) 19,639 18,713 19,257 19,814 20,387

G193
Economic Development Management + 

Admin (G193)
118,807 126,302 129,483 132,712 135,410

G194 Head of Economic Development (G194) 34,321 25 25 26 26

G196 Head of Planning (G196) 37,398 38,121 45,452 39,651 40,439

G198 Head of Housing (GF) (G198) 31,462 357 365 374 381

G208 Head of Estates and Property (G208) 28,650 2,111 2,126 2,133 2,142

G226 S106 - Highways (G226) 569,000 0 0 0 0

G227 S106 - Public Health (G227) (50,010) 113,390 0 0 0

G229 Housing Standards (G229) (1,984) 0 0 0 0

G237 Joint Venture (LLP) (G237) 35,218 0 0 0 0

G239
Housing + Community Safety Fixed Penalty 

A/c (G239)
710 1,000 1,000 1,000 5,691

G242 New Bolsover MV - CVP Worker (G242) 0 0 0 0 0

Total for Place Directorate 3,839,445 3,331,691 3,282,396 3,329,496 3,439,877

48



HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

Revised Original   

Budget Budget Forecast Forecast Forecast

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

£ £ £ £ £

Expenditure

Repairs and Maintenance 4,677,764 4,899,491 5,038,580 5,129,536 5,188,995

Rents Rates and Taxes 245,398 223,576 200,845 176,753 178,115

Supervision and Management 5,386,344 5,340,701 5,381,985 5,469,589 5,572,718

Special Services 512,631 500,030 504,646 501,930 507,505

Supporting People - Wardens 569,640 602,324 616,147 626,958 638,009

Supporting People - Central Control 248,327 268,830 268,228 271,361 274,526

Tenants Participation 77,124 68,090 69,386 83,394 72,033

New Bolsover Project 32,300 0 0 0 0

Increase in Bad Debts Provision 180,000 180,000 180,000 180,000 180,000

Cost of Capital - Interest 3,537,751 3,559,789 3,491,952 3,415,831 3,347,946

Debt Management Expenses 8,678 8,938 9,206 9,482 9,766

Total Expenditure 15,475,957 15,651,769 15,760,975 15,864,834 15,969,613

Income

Dwelling Rents (20,079,179) (20,510,920) (21,089,371) (21,683,441) (22,293,551)

Garage Rents (146,389) (150,338) (154,395) (158,568) (162,849)

Other Income (31,302) (27,296) (27,296) (27,296) (27,296)

Repairs and Maintenance (40,300) (20,700) (20,700) (20,700) (20,700)

Supervision and Management (300) (300) (300) (300) (300)

Special Services (73,458) (72,673) (72,673) (72,673) (72,673)

Supporting People - Wardens (518,719) (416,431) (303,448) (143,898) (147,783)

Supporting People - Central Control (210,371) (342,051) (221,885) (227,876) (234,029)

Tenants Participation (3,552) 0 0 0 0

New Bolsover Project (32,300) 0 0 0 0

Leased Flats (19,697) (19,000) (19,000) (19,000) (19,000)

Leased Shops (7,980) (7,980) (7,980) (7,980) (7,980)

Total Income (21,163,547) (21,567,689) (21,917,048) (22,361,732) (22,986,161)

Appropriations

Depreciation 3,200,000 3,800,000 3,800,000 3,800,000 3,800,000

T/f to/(from) Major Repairs Reserve 984,241 308,249 308,249 908,249 908,249

Contribution to Insurance Reserve 50,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000

Contribution to Development 

Reserve
1,500,000 1,500,000 1,800,000 1,500,000 2,000,000

Contribution to Vehicle Replacement 

Reserve
120,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 260,000

Use of  HRA Reserves (285,000) 0 0 0 0

Use of HRA Holding Account (36,426) 0 0 0 0

Contribution to/(from) HRA Balance 154,775 (38,696) (38,693) (38,693) (38,693)

5,687,590 5,809,553 6,109,556 6,409,556 6,969,556

Net Operating (Surplus) / Deficit 0 (106,367) (46,517) (87,342) (46,992)

APPENDIX 3

49



APPENDIX 3, table 1

HRA - Fees and Charges 2020/21

Weekly Charge over 48 Weeks unless otherwise specified

September 2019 Consumer Price Index was 1.7%

Current Proposed Change Change

£ £ £ %

Garage (tenant)  12.52 12.86 0.34 2.7%

Garage - Direct Debit Payment 9.45 9.71 0.26 2.7%

Garage (in curtledge) 4.73 4.85 0.13 2.7%

(Set at 50% of garage DD payment)

Garage plots 202.51 207.97 5.47 2.7%

(Billed annually)

New Bolsover Service Charge 2.00 2.05 0.05 2.7%

(applies to new tenants only)

Special Services Charge (See Note1) 16.38 16.83 0.44 2.7%

Reduced special service 10.92 11.22 0.29 2.7%

(Reduced special services for scheme other 

than Cat 2 who receive reduced service)

Heating Service Charge (See Note 2)

Bedsits 2.92 2.92 0.00 0.0%

1 bed flat 3.98 3.98 0.00 0.0%

2 bed flat 6.64 6.64 0.00 0.0%

3 bed flat 7.35 7.35 0.00 0.0%

1 bed bungalow 4.43 4.43 0.00 0.0%

2 bed bungalow 5.89 5.89 0.00 0.0%

Heating Charge (See Note 3)

Bedsits 4.83 4.83 0.00 0.0%

1 bed flat 6.58 6.58 0.00 0.0%

2 bed flat 10.97 10.97 0.00 0.0%

3 bed flat 12.14 12.14 0.00 0.0%

1 bed bungalow 7.31 7.31 0.00 0.0%

2 bed bungalow 9.73 9.73 0.00 0.0%

Support Charges 13.98 14.35 0.38 2.7%

Mobile Warden 5.79 6.36 0.58 10.0%

(long term aim to reach cost, increase 

capped at 10% per year)

Lifeline - bronze 4.84 4.97 0.13 2.7%

Lifeline - gold 7.44 7.65 0.20 2.7%

Lifeline - RSL 4.64 4.76 0.13 2.7%

Buggy Parking 3.94 4.05 0.11 2.7%

(including charging facilities)

50



APPENDIX 3, table 1

HRA - Fees and Charges 2020/21

Weekly Charge over 48 Weeks unless otherwise specified

September 2019 Consumer Price Index was 1.7%

Current Proposed Change Change

£ £ £ %

Choice Based Lettings Postage 1.16 1.22 0.06 5.2%

(suggested cost is twice the cost of a second 

class stamp)

Note 1

Note 2

Note 3

The Heating Charge is split into two separate charges.

Heating Service Charge is the cost for the provision and maintenance of a communal

heating system.  This includes an allowance for electricity to circulate heat within the

system. This charge is added to the rent amount and is covered by housing benefit if

appropriate.

The Heating Charge reflects the cost of fuel only, this is not covered by housing

benefit and is charged and monitored to a sub account on the main rent account.

This split is intended to make it easier to understand how we charge for heating.

Special Services Charge includes the heating, cleaning and furnishing of communal

areas, provision of laundry and kitchen facilities and other costs. The charge is a

contribution to the full cost of these services. This charge is added to the rent amount

and is covered by housing benefit if appropriate.

51



CAPITAL PROGRAMME SUMMARY Revised Original Forecast Forecast Forecast

Budget Programme Programme Programme Programme

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

£ £ £ £ £

General Fund

AMP - PV Mills 123,505 0 0 0 0

AMP - The Arc 92,107 0 0 0 0

AMP - Leisure Buildings 28,864 0 0 0 0

AMP - Riverside Depot 65,355 0 0 0 0

AMP - The Tangent 4,995 0 0 0 0

AMP - Investment Properties 9,712 0 0 0 0

AMP - Refurbishment Work 35,083 260,000 260,000 260,000 260,000

Refurbishment - Oxcroft House 27,500 0 0 0 0

Pleasley Vale Mill 1 - Dam Wall 36,493 78,332 0 0 0

Car Parking at Clowne - Additional 105,203 0 0 0 0

The Tangent - Phase 2 21,490 0 0 0 0

PV Mansafe System 29,229 0 0 0 0

PV Fire Compartmentation & Fire Doors 23,095 0 0 0 0

Rock Face Stabilisation Work 20,000 0 0 0 0

Can Ranger Expansion 14,532 0 0 0 0

637,163 338,332 260,000 260,000 260,000

Project Horizon

Clowne Campus - Refurbishment 23,077 0 0 0 0

23,077 0 0 0 0

ICT Schemes

ICT infrastructure 106,380 123,200 164,200 54,200 174,200

Payment Kiosks 57,000 0 0 0 0

Governance Software 14,000 0 0 0 0

Fleet Management System 32,500 0 0 0 0

209,880 123,200 164,200 54,200 174,200

Leisure Schemes

P Vale Outdoor Education Centre Ph 2 29,770 0 0 0 0

Clowne Leisure Facility 45,211 0 0 0 0

Go Active Equipment 15,000 15,000 0 0 0

Pool Cover 23,697 0 0 0 0

Replacement Astro Turf Pitch 0 50,000 0 0 0

Gym Equipment & Spin Bikes 0 0 365,000 0 0

Kitchen & Associated Equipment 0 0 20,000 0 0

113,678 65,000 385,000 0 0

Private Sector Schemes

Disabled Facility Grants 999,472 900,000 900,000 900,000 900,000

Group Repair (WT) 2,675 0 0 0 0

Station Road Shirebrook 1,341 0 0 0 0

1,003,488 900,000 900,000 900,000 900,000

Joint Venture

Dragonfly Joint Venture Shares 375,750 0 0 0 0

Dragonfly Joint Venture Loan 1,806,002 0 0 0 0

2,181,752 0 0 0 0

Vehicles and Plant

Vehicle Replacements 486,425 441,500 756,000 740,000 1,536,000

Vehicle Wash Area 94,707 0 0 0 0

581,132 441,500 756,000 740,000 1,536,000

Total General Fund 4,750,170 1,868,032 2,465,200 1,954,200 2,870,200

APPENDIX 4

52



CAPITAL PROGRAMME SUMMARY Revised Original Forecast Forecast Forecast

Budget Programme Programme Programme Programme

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

£ £ £ £ £

APPENDIX 4

Housing Revenue Account

New Build Properties

Recreation Close Clowne 168,430 0 0 0 0

Hilltop 56,354 0 0 0 0

Ash Close Pinxton 36,628 0 0 0 0

Beech Grove South Normanton 13,794 0 0 0 0

St Michaels Drive South Normanton 3,363 0 0 0 0

Highcliffe Ave Shirebrook 443 0 0 0 0

The Paddock Bolsover 1,969,381 0 0 0 0

Keepmoat Properties at Bolsover 850,908 0 0 0 0

3,099,301 0 0 0 0

Vehicle Replacements 0 63,500 69,000 364,000 580,000

0 63,500 69,000 364,000 580,000

Public Sector Housing

Electrical Upgrades 129,149 120,000 0 0 0

Cavity Wall + Loft Insulation 4,692 0 0 0 0

External Door Replacements 109,235 100,000 0 0 0

Heating Upgrades 2,692 0 0 0 0

Environmental Works 50,000 0 0 0 0

Reactive Capital Works 190,000 150,000 0 0 0

Kitchen Replacements - Decent Homes 360,236 200,000 0 0 0

Safe and Warm 2,697,588 2,300,000 0 0 0

Regeneration Mgmt & Admin 69,320 69,320 69,320 69,320 69,320

Re Roofing 807,663 750,000 0 0 0

Flat Roofing 25,000 25,000 0 0 0

Soffit and Fascia 112,431 0 0 0 0

Welfare Adaptations 480,000 300,000 0 0 0

Bramley Vale 200,000 0 0 0 0

House Fire Damage (Insurance) 50,000 0 0 0 0

Unallocated Major Repairs Reserve 0 34,529 4,038,929 4,638,929 4,638,929

5,288,006 4,048,849 4,108,249 4,708,249 4,708,249

ICT Schemes

Open Housing 56,269 59,400 0 0 0

56,269 59,400 0 0 0

New Bolsover Scheme (inc HLF)

New Bolsover-Regeneration Scheme 4,863,469 0 0 0 0

4,863,469 0 0 0 0

Total HRA 13,307,045 4,171,749 4,177,249 5,072,249 5,288,249

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 18,057,215 6,039,781 6,642,449 7,026,449 8,158,449

53



CAPITAL PROGRAMME SUMMARY Revised Original Forecast Forecast Forecast

Budget Programme Programme Programme Programme

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

£ £ £ £ £

APPENDIX 4

Capital Financing

General Fund

Better Care Fund (999,472) (900,000) (900,000) (900,000) (900,000)

Reserves (3,541,455) (708,362) (1,285,200) (769,200) (765,700)

External Funding (152,243) (259,670) 0 0 0

Capital Receipts (57,000) 0 (280,000) (285,000) (1,204,500)

(4,750,170) (1,868,032) (2,465,200) (1,954,200) (2,870,200)

HRA

Major Repairs Reserve (9,395,999) (4,108,249) (4,108,249) (4,708,249) (4,708,249)

Prudential Borrowing (2,293,801) 0 0 0 0

Vehicle Reserve 0 (63,500) (69,000) (364,000) (580,000)

HRA Development Reserve (500,000) 0 0 0 0

1-4-1 Capital Receipts (805,500) 0 0 0 0

External Funding (311,745) 0 0 0 0

(13,307,045) (4,171,749) (4,177,249) (5,072,249) (5,288,249)

TOTAL CAPITAL FINANCING (18,057,215) (6,039,781) (6,642,449) (7,026,449) (8,158,449)

Capital Reserves

Major Repairs Reserve

Opening Balance (5,271,050) (59,292) (59,292) (59,292) (59,292)

Amount due in Year (4,184,241) (4,108,249) (4,108,249) (4,708,249) (4,708,249)

Amount used in Year 9,395,999 4,108,249 4,108,249 4,708,249 4,708,249

Closing Balance (59,292) (59,292) (59,292) (59,292) (59,292)

HRA Development Reserve

Opening Balance (1,544,983) (2,259,983) (3,759,983) (5,559,983) (7,059,983)

Amount due in Year (1,500,000) (1,500,000) (1,800,000) (1,500,000) (2,000,000)

Amount used in Year 785,000 0 0 0 0

Closing Balance (2,259,983) (3,759,983) (5,559,983) (7,059,983) (9,059,983)

HRA Vehicle Reserve

Opening Balance (335,529) (455,529) (592,029) (723,029) (559,029)

Amount due in Year (120,000) (200,000) (200,000) (200,000) (260,000)

Amount used in Year 0 63,500 69,000 364,000 580,000

Closing Balance (455,529) (592,029) (723,029) (559,029) (239,029)

1-4-1 Capital Receipts Reserve

Opening Balance (1,250,276) (586,985) (586,985) (586,985) (586,985)

Amount due in Year (142,209) 0 0 0 0

Amount used in Year 805,500 0 0 0 0

Closing Balance (586,985) (586,985) (586,985) (586,985) (586,985)

54



 
 

 
Bolsover District Council 

 
Council  

 
19 February 2020 

 

 
Treasury Strategy Reports 2020/21 - 2023/24 

 

 
Report of Councillor Clive Moesby, Portfolio Holder for Finance + Resources 

 
This report is public 

 
Purpose of the Report 
 
 The purpose of this report is to provide Council with the necessary information to 

approve the Authority’s suite of Treasury Strategies for 2020/21 to 2023/24. 
 
1 Report Details 
 

1.1 Treasury risk management at the Authority is conducted within the framework of the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury Management in 
the Public Services: Code of Practice 2017 Edition (the CIPFA Code) which requires 
the Authority to approve a treasury management strategy before the start of each 
financial year. This report fulfils the Authority’s legal obligation under the Local 
Government Act 2003 to have regard to the CIPFA Code. 
 

1.2 From 2019/20, the CIPFA Code required that a Capital Strategy be produced 
alongside the Treasury Management Strategy. In addition, the 2018 Investment 
Guidance issued by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 
required local authorities to produce a Corporate Investment Strategy. So from 
2019/20 there has been a requirement to produce three separate treasury strategies. 

 
1.3 As in previous years, the Authority’s Treasury Management Strategy provides the 

framework for managing the Authority’s cash flows, borrowing and investments, and 
the associated risks for the years 2020/21 to 2023/24.  The Treasury Management 
Strategy sets out the parameters for all borrowing and lending as well as listing all 
approved borrowing and investment sources. Prudential indicators aimed at 
monitoring risk are also included. (Appendix 1).  
 

1.4 The Capital Strategy is intended to be a high level, concise overview of how capital 
expenditure, capital financing and treasury management activity contribute to the 
provision of the Authority’s services.  The report also provides an overview of the 
associated risk, its management and the implications for future financial 
sustainability. The Capital Strategy sets out the capital expenditure plans for the 
period and how they will be financed. It also provides information of the minimum 
revenue provision, capital financing requirement and prudential indicators aimed at 
monitoring risk (Appendix 2). 
 

55

Agenda Item 13



 
 

1.5 The Corporate Investment Strategy focuses on investments made for service 
purposes and commercial reasons, rather than those made for treasury 
management. Investments covered by this strategy include earning investment 
income through commercial investments or by supporting local services by lending to 
or buying shares in other organisations (Appendix 3). 

 
2 Conclusions and Reasons for Recommendation  
 

2.1 This report outlines the Authority’s proposed suite of Treasury Strategies for the 
period 2020/21 to 2023/24 for consideration and approval by Council.  It contains: 

 

 The Treasury Management Strategy which provides the framework for managing 
the Authority’s cash flows, borrowing and investments for the period. 

 

 The Capital Strategy which is intended to provide a high level, concise overview 
of how capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury management activity 
contribute to the provision of the Authority’s services.   

 

 The Corporate Investment Strategy which focuses on investments made for 
service purposes and commercial reasons, rather than those made for treasury 
management. 

 
 The above strategies provide an approved framework within which the officers 
undertake the day to day capital and treasury activities. 
 

3 Consultation and Equality Impact 
 

3.1 There are no equality issues arising from this report. 
 
4 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
 

4.1 Alternative options are considered throughout the report 
 
5 Implications 
 

5.1 Finance and Risk Implications  
 

5.1.1 These are considered throughout the report 
  

5.2 Legal Implications including Data Protection 
 

5.2.1 As part of the requirements of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice 
the Authority is required to produce every year a Treasury Management Strategy 
and Capital Strategy which requires approval by full Council prior to the 
commencement of each financial year. This report is prepared in order to comply 
with these obligations. 

 
5.2.2 There are no Data Protection issues arising directly from this report. 

 
5.3 Human Resources Implications 

 
5.3.1  There are no human resource implications arising directly out of this report. 

56



 
 

 
6 Recommendations 
 

6.1 It is recommended that Council approve the Treasury Management Strategy at 
Appendix 1 and in particular: 

  
a) Approve the Borrowing Strategy  

 
b) Approve the Treasury Management Investment Strategy  

 
c) Approve the use of the external treasury management advisors Counterparty 

Weekly List – or similar - to determine the latest assessment of the counterparties 
that meet the Authority’s Criteria before any investment is undertaken. 

 
d) Approve the Prudential Indicators  

 
6.2 It is recommended that Council approve the Capital Strategy as set out in Appendix 

2 and in particular: 
  

a) Approve the Capital Financing Requirement 
 

b) Approve the Minimum Revenue Provision Statement for 2020/21 
 

c) Approve the Prudential Indicators for 2020/21 detailed in the Capital Strategy, in 
particular: 

  
 Authorised Borrowing Limit  £126,688,662 
 
 Operational Boundary  £121,688,662 
 
 Capital Financing Requirement £116,688,662 

 
6.3 It is recommended that Council approve the Corporate Investment Strategy as set 

out in Appendix 3. 
  
7 Decision Information 
 

Is the decision a Key Decision? 
A Key Decision is an executive decision 
which has a significant impact on two or 
more District wards or which results in 
income or expenditure to the Council above 
the following thresholds:               

No 
 
 
 
 
 
 BDC:     

 
Revenue - £75,000    
Capital - £150,000     

NEDDC:  
 

Revenue - £100,000  
Capital - £250,000     

 Please indicate which threshold applies 

Is the decision subject to Call-In? 
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)  

No 

57



 
 

Has the relevant Portfolio Holder been 
informed 

Yes 

District Wards Affected 
 

All 

Links to Corporate Plan priorities or 
Policy Framework 

All  

 
8 Document Information 
 

Appendix No 
 

Title 

1 
2 
3 

Treasury Management Strategy  
Capital Strategy  
Corporate Investment Strategy  

Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied 
on to a material extent when preparing the report.  They must be listed in the 
section below.  If the report is going to Cabinet (NEDDC) or Executive (BDC) 
you must provide copies of the background papers) 

 

Report Author 
 

Contact Number 

 
Head of Finance and Resources 
Principal Accountant 
 

 
01246 242458 
01246 242459 

 

58



Appendix 1 
 
 

Bolsover District Council 
 

 

 

Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21 - 2023/24 
 

 
 
1 Strategy Details 
 

1.1 Treasury risk management at the Authority is conducted within the framework of the 

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury Management in 

the Public Services: Code of Practice 2017 Edition (the CIPFA Code) which requires 

the Authority to approve a Treasury Management Strategy before the start of each 

financial year. This strategy fulfils the Authority’s legal obligation under the Local 

Government Act 2003 to have regard to the CIPFA Code. 

 

1.2 The strategy outlines the Authority’s Treasury Management Strategy for the years 

2020/21 to 2023/24 for consideration and approval by Council. 

 

1.3 Investments held for service purposes or for commercial profit are considered in a 

different strategy, the Corporate Investment Strategy. 

 

1.4 A further strategy, the Capital Strategy, sets out the Authority’s Capital Expenditure 

programme and Minimum Revenue Provision policy (MRP). 

 
Introduction 
 

1.5 Treasury management is the management of the Authority’s cash flows, borrowing 

and investments, and the associated risks. The Authority has borrowed and invested 

substantial sums of money and is therefore exposed to financial risks including the 

loss of invested funds and the revenue effect of changing interest rates.  The 

successful identification, monitoring and control of financial risk are therefore central 

to the Authority’s prudent financial management.  

 

External Context  

 

1.6 Economic background: The UK’s progress negotiating its exit from the European 

Union, together with its future trading arrangements, will continue to be a major 

influence on the Authority’s treasury management strategy for 2020/21. The General 

Election has removed some uncertainty within the market, however following the 

expected Withdrawal Bill, uncertainties around the future trading relationship with the 

EU remain. 

 

59



 1.7 Gross Domestic Product growth rose by 0.4% in the third quarter of 2019 from -0.2% 

in the previous three months with the annual rate falling further below its trend rate to 

1.1% from 1.2%. Services, construction and production added positively to growth, 

by 0.5%, 1.2% and 0.1% respectively, while agriculture recorded a fall of 0.1%. 

Looking ahead, the Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Report (formerly the Quarterly 

Inflation Report) forecasts economic growth to pick up during 2020 as Brexit-related 

uncertainties dissipate and provide a boost to business investment helping GDP 

reach 1.6% in Q4 2020, 1.8% in Q4 2021 and 2.1% in Q4 2022. 

1.8 The headline rate of UK Consumer Price Inflation remained the same in November 

2019 at 1.5% year-on-year, the same as October 2019, however continuing to fall 

from highs of 2.1% in July and April 2019 as accommodation services and transport 

continued to contribute to a level of inflation below the Bank of England target of 2%. 

Labour market data continues to be positive. The International Labour Office 

unemployment rate continues to hold at historic lows at 3.8%, its lowest level since 

1975. The 3-month average annual growth rate for pay excluding bonuses rose to 

3.5% in November 2019 providing some evidence that a shortage of labour is 

supporting wages.  However, adjusting for inflation this means real wages were only 

up by 0.9% in October 2019 and only likely to have a moderate impact on household 

spending. 

 

1.9 Domestic inflationary pressures have abated, as domestic gas and electricity price 

freezes have taken effect until 2020. The price of oil has fallen through the year, 

despite a rise in prices in December 2019. The limited inflationary pressure from real 

wages will likely keep inflation below the Bank of England target of 2%. The Bank of 

England maintained Bank Rate to 0.75% in November following a 7-2 vote by the 

MPC. Despite keeping rates on hold, MPC members did confirm that if Brexit 

uncertainty drags on or global growth fails to recover, they are prepared to cut interest 

rates as required. Moreover, the downward revisions to some of the growth 

projections in the Monetary Policy Report suggest the Committee may now be less 

convinced of the need to increase rates even if there is a Brexit deal. 

 

1.10 The US economy has continued to perform relatively well compared to other 

developed nations; however, the Federal Reserve has started to unwind its monetary 

tightening through 2019. The Federal Reserve has cut rates three times to 1.5% - 

1.75%, to stimulate growth as GDP growth has started to fall (to 2.1%). The fallout 

from the US-China trade war continues, which risks contributing to a slowdown in 

global economic activity in 2019. Recent suggestions have been an initial 

compromise and potential unwinding of tariffs; however, this can change quickly. 

Slow growth in Europe, combined with changes in leadership at the European Central 

Bank and International Monetary Fund has led to a change of stance in 2019. 

Quantitative easing has continued and been extended. 

1.11 Credit outlook: The recent Bank of England stress tests assessed all seven UK 

banking groups. The tests scenarios include deep simultaneous recessions in the UK 

and global economies that are more severe overall than the global financial crisis, 

60



combined with large falls in asset prices and a separate stress of misconduct costs. 

All seven banks passed the test on both a CET1 ratio and a leverage ratio basis. 

Major banks have steadily increased their capital for many years now. 

 

1.12 However, there are a number of shortcomings in the Bank’s approach; timeliness as 

the results are over 11 months old when they are published, being based on end-

2018 balance sheets; ringfencing, as the tests ignore the restrictions on transferring 

capital between ringfenced “retail” banks and non-ringfenced “investment” banks 

within the larger groups and; coverage – the tests should be expanded to cover a 

wider range of UK banks and building societies. 

 

1.13 The Bank of England will seek to address some of these issues in 2020, when Virgin 

Money/Clydesdale will be added to the testing group and separate tests will be 

included of ringfenced banks. 

 

1.14 Challenger banks hit the news headlines in 2019 with Metro Bank and TSB Bank both 

suffering adverse publicity and falling customer numbers. Looking forward, the 

potential for a “no-deal” Brexit and/or a global recession remain the major risks facing 

banks and building societies in 2020/21 and a cautious approach to bank deposits 

remains advisable. 

  1.15 Interest rate forecast: The Authority’s treasury management adviser Arlingclose is 

forecasting that Bank Rate will remain at 0.75% until the end of 2022.  The risks to 

this forecast are deemed to be significantly weighted to the downside, particularly 

given the need for greater clarity on Brexit and the continuing global economic 

slowdown.  The Bank of England, having previously indicated interest rates may need 

to rise if a Brexit agreement was reached, stated in its November Monetary Policy 

Report and its Bank Rate decision (7-2 vote to hold rates) that the MPC now believe 

this is less likely even in the event of a deal.  

1.16 Gilt yields have risen but remain at low levels and only some very modest upward 

movement from current levels are expected based on Arlingclose’s interest rate 

projections.  The central case is for 10-year and 20-year gilt yields to rise to around 

1.00% and 1.40% respectively over the time horizon, with broadly balanced risks to 

both the upside and downside.  However, short-term volatility arising from both 

economic and political events over the period is a near certainty. 

 

1.17 A more detailed economic and interest rate forecast provided by Arlingclose is 

attached at Appendix A. 

 

1.18 For the purpose of setting the budget, it has been assumed that new treasury 

management investments will be made at an average rate of 0.75%. 

 

 

 

Local Context 

61



 

1.19 On 31st December 2019, the Authority held £99.1m of borrowing and £40.7m of 

treasury investments. This is set out in further detail at Appendix B.  Forecast 

changes in these sums are shown in the balance sheet analysis in table 1 below. 

 

Table 1: Balance sheet summary and forecast 

** shows only loans to which the Authority is committed and excludes optional refinancing 

 

1.20 The underlying need to borrow for capital purposes is measured by the Capital 

Financing Requirement (CFR), while usable reserves and working capital are the 

underlying resources available for investment.  The Authority’s current strategy is to 

maintain borrowing and investments below their underlying levels, sometimes known 

as internal borrowing.  

 

1.21 The Authority has a decreasing CFR due to the decision to use £3.937m of funding 

from the Transformation Reserve to finance the capital programme rather than use 

borrowing for the period 20/21 to 22/23 to make savings through reduced debt 

charges.  

 

1.22 Liability benchmark: To compare the Authority’s actual borrowing against an 

alternative strategy, a liability benchmark has been calculated showing the lowest risk 

level of borrowing. This assumes the same forecasts as table 1 above, but that cash 

and investment balances are kept to a minimum level of £10m at each year-end to 

maintain sufficient liquidity but minimise credit risk. 

 

 

Table 2: Liability benchmark 

 

 

31.3.19 

Actual 

£m 

31.3.20 

Estimate 

£m 

31.3.21 

Forecast 

£m 

31.3.22 

Forecast 

£m 

31.3.23 

Forecast 

£m 

31.3.24 

Forecast 

£m 

General Fund CFR 9.3 8.7 7.9 7.2   6.8 6.3 

HRA CFR  106.5 108.7 108.7 108.7 108.7 108.7 

Total CFR  115.8 117.4 116.6 115.9 115.5 115.0 

Less: External 

borrowing ** 
(102.1) (99.1) (97.1) (93.4) (89.4) (86.0) 

Internal  

borrowing 
13.7 18.3 19.5 22.5 26.1 29.0 

Less: Usable 

reserves 
(42.5) (42.5) (42.5) (42.5) (42.5) (42.5) 

Less: Working 

capital (balance) 
(7.2) (7.2) (7.2) (7.2) (7.2) (7.2) 

Treasury 

Investments 
36.0 31.4 30.2 27.2 23.6 20.7 

62



 31.3.19 

Actual 

£m 

31.3.20 

Estimate 

£m 

31.3.21 

Forecast 

£m 

31.3.22 

Forecast 

£m 

31.3.23 

Forecast 

£m 

31.3.24 

Forecast 

£m 

CFR 115.8 117.4 116.6 115.9 115.5 115.0 

Less: Usable reserves (42.5) (42.5) (42.5) (42.5) (42.5) (42.5) 

Less: Working capital (7.2) (7.2) (7.2) (7.2) (7.2) (7.2) 

Plus: Minimum 
investments 

10 10 10 10 10 10 

Liability Benchmark 76.1 77.7 76.9 76.2 75.8 75.3 

 
Borrowing Strategy 

 

1.23 The Authority currently holds £99.1m of loans, as part of its strategy for funding 

previous years’ capital programmes. The balance sheet forecast in table 1 shows that 

the Authority does not anticipate borrowing during the period 2020/21 to 2023/24.  . 

 

1.24 Objectives: The Authority’s chief objective when borrowing money is to strike an 

appropriately low risk balance between securing low interest costs and achieving 

certainty of those costs over the period for which funds are required.  The flexibility to 

renegotiate loans should the Authority’s long-term plans change is a secondary 

objective. 

 

1.25 Strategy: Given the significant cuts to public expenditure and in particular to local 

government funding, the Authority’s borrowing strategy continues to address the key 

issue of affordability without compromising the longer-term stability of the debt 

portfolio. With short-term interest rates currently much lower than long-term rates, it 

is likely to be more cost effective in the short-term to either use internal resources, or 

to borrow short-term loans instead.   

 

1.26 By doing so, the Authority is able to reduce net borrowing costs (despite foregone 

investment income) and reduce overall treasury risk. The benefits of internal 

borrowing will be monitored regularly against the potential for incurring additional 

costs by deferring borrowing into future years when long-term borrowing rates are 

forecast to rise modestly. Arlingclose will assist the Authority with this ‘cost of carry’ 

and breakeven analysis. Its output may determine whether the Authority borrows 

additional sums at long-term fixed rates in 2020/21 with a view to keeping future 

interest costs low, even if this causes additional cost in the short-term. 

 

1.27 Alternatively, the Authority may arrange forward starting loans during 2020/21, where 

the interest rate is fixed in advance, but the cash is received in later years. This would 

enable certainty of cost to be achieved without suffering a cost of carry in the 

intervening period. 

 

1.28 In addition, the Authority may borrow short-term loans to cover unplanned cash flow 

shortages. 

63



 

1.29 Sources of borrowing: The approved sources of long-term and short-term 

borrowing are: 

 

• Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) and any successor body 

• any institution approved for investments (see below) 

• any other bank or building society authorised to operate in the UK 

• any other UK public sector body 

• UK public and private sector pension funds (except Derbyshire County Council 

Pension Fund) 

• capital market bond investors 

• UK Municipal Bonds Agency plc and other special purpose companies created to 

enable local authority bond issues 

 

1.30 Other sources of debt finance: In addition, capital finance may be raised by the 

following methods that are not borrowing, but may be classed as other debt liabilities: 

 

• leasing 

• hire purchase 

• Private Finance Initiative  

• sale and leaseback 

 

1.31 The Authority has previously raised all of its long-term borrowing from the PWLB but 

it continues to investigate other sources of finance, such as local authority loans and 

bank loans that may be available at more favourable rates. 

 

1.32 Municipal Bonds Agency: UK Municipal Bonds Agency plc was established in 2014 

by the Local Government Association as an alternative to the PWLB.  It plans to issue 

bonds on the capital markets and lend the proceeds to local authorities.  This will be 

a more complicated source of finance than the PWLB for two reasons: borrowing 

authorities will be required to provide bond investors with a guarantee to refund their 

investment in the event that the agency is unable to for any reason; and there will be 

a lead time of several months between committing to borrow and knowing the interest 

rate payable. Any decision to borrow from the Agency will therefore be the subject of 

a separate report to Council.   

 

1.33 LOBOs: The Authority doesn’t hold or intend to hold any LOBO (Lender’s Option 

Borrower’s Option) loans. 

 

1.34 Short-term and variable rate loans: These loans leave the Authority exposed to the 

risk of short-term interest rate rises and are therefore subject to the interest rate 

exposure limits in the treasury management indicators below. 

 

1.35 Debt rescheduling: The PWLB allows authorities to repay loans before maturity and 

either pay a premium or receive a discount according to a set formula based on 

current interest rates. The Authority may take advantage of this and replace some 

64



loans with new loans, or repay loans without replacement, where this is expected to 

lead to an overall cost saving or a reduction in risk. 

 

Treasury Management Investment Strategy 

 

1.36 The Authority holds an average of £39m invested funds, representing income 

received in advance of expenditure plus balances and reserves held. In the past 12 

months, the Authority’s investment balance has ranged between £31m and £43m, 

and similar levels are expected to be maintained in the forthcoming year. 

 

1.37 Objectives: The CIPFA Code requires the Authority to invest its funds prudently, and 

to have regard to the security and liquidity of its investments before seeking the 

highest rate of return, or yield. The Authority’s objective when investing money is to 

strike an appropriate balance between risk and return, minimising the risk of incurring 

losses from defaults and the risk of receiving unsuitably low investment income.  

 

1.38 Where balances are expected to be invested for more than one year, the Authority 

will aim to achieve a total return that is equal or higher than the prevailing rate of 

inflation, in order to maintain the spending power of the sum invested. 

 

1.39 Negative interest rates: If the UK enters into a recession in 2020/21, there is a small 

chance that the Bank of England could set its Bank Rate at or below zero, which is 

likely to feed through to negative interest rates on all low risk, short-term investment 

options. This situation already exists in many other European countries. In this event, 

security will be measured as receiving the contractually agreed amount at maturity, 

even though this may be less than the amount originally invested. 

 

1.40 Strategy: Given the increasing risk and very low returns from short-term unsecured 

bank investments, the Authority aims to diversify into more secure and higher yielding 

asset classes during 2020/21.  This is especially the case for the estimated £10m that 

is available for longer-term investment. The majority of the Authority’s surplus cash 

is currently invested in short-term unsecured bank deposits, short term fixed deposits 

with local authorities and money market funds.  This diversification will represent a 

substantial change in strategy over the coming year  

 

1.41 Business models: Under the new IFRS 9 standard, the accounting for certain 

investments depends on the Authority’s “business model” for managing them. The 

Authority aims to achieve value from its internally managed treasury investments by 

a business model of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore, where other 

criteria are also met, these investments will continue to be accounted for at amortised 

cost.  

 

1.42 Approved counterparties: The Authority may invest its surplus funds with any of the 

counterparty types in table 3 below, subject to the cash limits (per counterparty) and 

the time limits shown. 

 

65



Table 3: Approved investment counterparties and limits 

 

Credit rating 
Banks 

unsecured 
Banks 

secured 
Government Corporates 

Registered 
Providers 

UK Govt n/a n/a 
£ Unlimited 

50 years 
n/a n/a 

AAA 
£5m 

5 years 
£5m 

20 years 
£5m 

50 years 
£5m 

20 years 
£5m 

20 years 

AA+ 
£5m 

5 years 
£5m 

10 years 
£5m 

25 years 
£5m 

10 years 
£5m 

10 years 

AA 
£5m 

4 years 
£5m 

5 years 
£5m 

15 years 
£5m 

5 years 
£5m 

10 years 

AA- 
£5m 

3 years 
£5m 

4 years 
£5m 

10 years 
£5m 

4 years 
£5m 

10 years 

A+ 
£2.5m 
2 years 

£5m 
3 years 

£5m 
5 years 

£2.5m 
3 years 

£5m 
5 years 

A 
£2.5m 

13 months 
£5m 

2 years 
£5m 

5 years 
£2.5m 
2 years 

£5m 
5 years 

A- 
£2.5m 

6 months 

£5m 
13 

months 

£5m 
5 years 

£2.5m 
13 months 

£5m 
5 years 

None n/a n/a 
£5m 

25 years 
n/a 

£5m 
5 years 

Pooled funds 
and real estate 

investment 
trusts 

 
£5m per fund 

 

1.43 Credit rating: Investment limits are set by reference to the lowest published long-

term credit rating from a selection of external rating agencies. Where available, the 

credit rating relevant to the specific investment or class of investment is used, 

otherwise the counterparty credit rating is used. However, investment decisions are 

never made solely based on credit ratings, and all other relevant factors including 

external advice will be taken into account. 

 

1.44 Banks unsecured: Accounts, deposits, certificates of deposit and senior unsecured 

bonds with banks and building societies, other than multilateral development banks. 

These investments are subject to the risk of credit loss via a bail-in should the 

regulator determine that the bank is failing or likely to fail. See below for arrangements 

relating to operational bank accounts. 

 

1.45 Banks secured: Covered bonds, reverse repurchase agreements and other 

collateralised arrangements with banks and building societies. These investments are 

secured on the bank’s assets, which limits the potential losses in the unlikely event 

of insolvency, and means that they are exempt from bail-in. Where there is no 

investment specific credit rating, but the collateral upon which the investment is 

secured has a credit rating, the higher of the collateral credit rating and the 

counterparty credit rating will be used to determine cash and time limits. The 

66



combined secured and unsecured investments in any one bank will not exceed the 

cash limit for secured investments. 

 

1.46 Government: Loans, bonds and bills issued or guaranteed by national governments, 

regional and local authorities, Parish Councils and multilateral development banks. 

These investments are not subject to bail-in, and there is generally a lower risk of 

insolvency, although they are not zero risk. Investments with the UK Central 

Government may be made in unlimited amounts for up to 50 years. 

 

1.47 Corporates: Loans, bonds and commercial paper issued by companies other than 

banks and registered providers. These investments are not subject to bail-in, but are 

exposed to the risk of the company going insolvent.  Loans to unrated companies will 

only be made either following an external credit assessment or as part of a diversified 

pool in order to spread the risk widely. 

 

1.48 Registered providers: Loans and bonds issued by, guaranteed by or secured on 

the assets of registered providers of social housing and registered social landlords, 

formerly known as housing associations.  These bodies are tightly regulated by the 

Regulator of Social Housing.  As providers of public services, they retain the likelihood 

of receiving government support if needed.   

 

1.49 Pooled funds: Shares or units in diversified investment vehicles consisting of any of 

the above investment types, plus equity shares and property. These funds have the 

advantage of providing wide diversification of investment risks, coupled with the 

services of a professional fund manager in return for a fee.  Short-term Money Market 

Funds that offer same-day liquidity and very low or no volatility will be used as an 

alternative to instant access bank accounts, while pooled funds whose value changes 

with market prices and/or have a notice period will be used for longer investment 

periods.  

 

1.50 Bond, equity and property funds offer enhanced returns over the longer term, but are 

more volatile in the short term.  These allow the Authority to diversify into asset 

classes other than cash without the need to own and manage the underlying 

investments. Because these funds have no defined maturity date, but are available 

for withdrawal after a notice period, their performance and continued suitability in 

meeting the Authority’s investment objectives will be monitored regularly. 

 

1.51 Real estate investment trusts: Shares in companies that invest mainly in real estate 

and pay the majority of their rental income to investors in a similar manner to pooled 

property funds. As with property funds, REITs offer enhanced returns over the longer 

term, but are more volatile especially as the share price reflects changing demand for 

the shares as well as changes in the value of the underlying properties. Investments 

in REIT shares cannot be withdrawn but can be sold on the stock market to another 

investor. 

 

67



1.52 Operational bank accounts: The Authority may incur operational exposures, for 

example through current accounts, collection accounts and merchant acquiring 

services, to any UK bank with credit ratings no lower than BBB- and with assets 

greater than £25 billion. These are not classed as investments, but are still subject to 

the risk of a bank bail-in, and balances will therefore be kept below £5m per bank. 

The Bank of England has stated that in the event of failure, banks with assets greater 

than £25 billion are more likely to be bailed-in than made insolvent, increasing the 

chance of the Authority maintaining operational continuity.  

 

1.53 Risk assessment and credit ratings: Credit ratings are obtained and monitored by 

the Authority’s treasury advisers, who will notify changes in ratings as they occur.  

Where an entity has its credit rating downgraded so that it fails to meet the approved 

investment criteria then: 

• no new investments will be made, 

• any existing investments that can be recalled or sold at no cost will be, and 

• full consideration will be given to the recall or sale of all other existing investments 

with the affected counterparty. 

 

1.54 Where a credit rating agency announces that a credit rating is on review for possible 

downgrade (also known as “rating watch negative” or “credit watch negative”) so that 

it may fall below the approved rating criteria, then only investments that can be 

withdrawn on the next working day will be made with that organisation until the 

outcome of the review is announced.  This policy will not apply to negative outlooks, 

which indicate a long-term direction of travel rather than an imminent change of rating. 

 

1.55 Other information on the security of investments: The Authority understands that 

credit ratings are good, but not perfect, predictors of investment default.  Full regard 

will therefore be given to other available information on the credit quality of the 

organisations in which it invests, including credit default swap prices, financial 

statements, information on potential government support, reports in the quality 

financial press and analysis and advice from the Authority’s treasury management 

adviser.  No investments will be made with an organisation if there are substantive 

doubts about its credit quality, even though it may otherwise meet the above criteria. 

 

1.56 When deteriorating financial market conditions affect the creditworthiness of all 

organisations, as happened in 2008 and 2011, this is not generally reflected in credit 

ratings, but can be seen in other market measures. In these circumstances, the 

Authority will restrict its investments to those organisations of higher credit quality and 

reduce the maximum duration of its investments to maintain the required level of 

security.  The extent of these restrictions will be in line with prevailing financial market 

conditions. If these restrictions mean that insufficient commercial organisations of 

high credit quality are available to invest the Authority’s cash balances, then the 

surplus will be deposited with the UK Government via the Debt Management Office 

or invested in government treasury bills for example, or with other local authorities.  

This will cause a reduction in the level of investment income earned, but will protect 

the principal sum invested. 

68



 

1.57 Investment limits: In order to minimise investments that will be put at risk in the case 

of a single default, the maximum that will be lent to any one organisation (other than 

the UK Government) will be £5m.  A group of banks under the same ownership will 

be treated as a single organisation for limit purposes.  Limits will also be placed on 

fund managers, investments in brokers’ nominee accounts, foreign countries and 

industry sectors as below. Investments in pooled funds and multilateral development 

banks do not count against the limit for any single foreign country, since the risk is 

diversified over many countries. 

 

Table 4: Investment limits 

 

 Cash limit 

Any single organisation, except the UK Central 

Government 
£5m each 

UK Central Government unlimited 

Any group of organisations under the same 

ownership 
£5m per group 

Any group of pooled funds under the same 

management 
£10m per manager 

Foreign countries £10m per country 

Registered providers and registered social 

landlords 
£10m in total 

Unsecured investments with building societies £5m per society 

Loans to unrated corporates £5m in total 

Money market funds £30m in total 

Real estate investment trusts £5m in total 

Lloyds Bank (as providers of operational banking 

services) 
£5m overnight 

 

 

1.58 Liquidity management: The Authority uses its own cash flow forecasting techniques 

to determine the maximum period for which funds may prudently be committed.  The 

forecast is compiled on a prudent basis to minimise the risk of the Authority being 

forced to borrow on unfavourable terms to meet its financial commitments. Limits on 

long-term investments are set by reference to the Authority’s medium-term financial 

plan and cash flow forecast. 

 

Treasury Management Indicators 

 

1.59 The Authority measures and manages its exposures to treasury management risks 

using the following indicators: 

 

69



1.60 Interest rate exposures: This indicator is set to control the Authority’s exposure to 

interest rate risk.  The upper limits on the one-year revenue impact of a 1% rise or fall 

in interest rates will be: 

 

Interest rate risk indicator Limit each year 

Upper limit on one-year revenue impact of a 1% rise in 

interest rates 
£79,905 

Upper limit on one-year revenue impact of a 1% fall in 

interest rates 
(£79,905) 

 

1.61 The impact of a change in interest rates is calculated on the assumption that maturing 

loans and investments will be replaced at current rates. 

 

1.62 Maturity structure of borrowing: This indicator is set to control the Authority’s 

exposure to refinancing risk.  This indicator used to be for fixed rate borrowing only 

but now includes all borrowing.  The upper and lower limits on the maturity structure 

of borrowing will be: 

 

Refinancing rate risk indicator Upper limit Lower limit 

Under 12 months 20% 0% 

12 months and within 24 months 40% 0% 

24 months and within 5 years 60% 0% 

5 years and within 10 years 80% 0% 

10 years and above 100% 0% 

 

1.63 Time periods start on the first day of each financial year. The maturity date of 

borrowing is the earliest date on which the lender can demand repayment.  

 

1.64 Principal sums invested for periods longer than a year: The purpose of this 

indicator is to control the Authority’s exposure to the risk of incurring losses by 

seeking early repayment of its investments.  The limits on the long-term principal sum 

invested to final maturities beyond the period end will be: 

 

Price risk indicator 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

Limit on principal invested 

beyond year end 
£5m £4m £3m £2m 

 

 

 

Related Matters 

 

1.65 The CIPFA Code requires the Authority to include the following in its treasury 

management strategy. 

 

70



1.66 Financial Derivatives: Local authorities have previously made use of financial 

derivatives embedded into loans and investments both to reduce interest rate risk 

(e.g. interest rate collars and forward deals) and to reduce costs or increase income 

at the expense of greater risk (e.g. LOBO loans and callable deposits).  The general 

power of competence in Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 removes much of the 

uncertainty over local authorities’ use of standalone financial derivatives (i.e. those 

that are not embedded into a loan or investment). 

 

1.67 The Authority will only use standalone financial derivatives (such as swaps, forwards, 

futures and options) where they can be clearly demonstrated to reduce the overall 

level of the financial risks that the Authority is exposed to. Additional risks presented, 

such as credit exposure to derivative counterparties, will be taken into account when 

determining the overall level of risk. Embedded derivatives, including those present 

in pooled funds and forward starting transactions, will not be subject to this policy, 

although the risks they present will be managed in line with the overall treasury risk 

management strategy. 

 

1.68 Financial derivative transactions may be arranged with any organisation that meets 

the approved investment criteria. The current value of any amount due from a 

derivative counterparty will count against the counterparty credit limit and the relevant 

foreign country limit. In line with the CIPFA code, the Authority will seek external 

advice and will consider that advice before entering into financial derivatives to ensure 

that it fully understands the implications. 

 

1.69 Housing Revenue Account: The Authority completed the HRA self-financing 
settlement in March 2012 which resulted in an increase in housing debt of £94.386m.  
Interest payable and other costs/income arising from current and new long-term loans 
(e.g. Premiums and discounts on early redemption) will be charged / credited to the 
respective revenue account based on the average CFR and consolidated interest rate 
calculated at the 31 March.   

 

1.70 Markets in Financial Instruments Directive: The Authority has opted up to 

professional client status with its providers of financial services, including advisers, 

banks, brokers and fund managers, allowing it access to a greater range of services 

but without the greater regulatory protections afforded to individuals and small 

companies. Given the size and range of the Authority’s treasury management 

activities, the Chief Financial Officer believes this to be the most appropriate status. 

 

71



 
 

Appendix A 

 

Appendix A – Arlingclose Economic & Interest Rate Forecast November 2019  

Underlying assumptions:  

 

 The global economy is entering a period of slower growth in response to political 

issues, primarily the trade policy stance of the US. The UK economy has displayed a 

marked slowdown in growth due to both Brexit uncertainty and the downturn in global 

activity. In response, global and UK interest rate expectations have eased. 

 Some positivity on the trade negotiations between China and the US has prompted 

worst case economic scenarios to be pared back. However, information is limited, 

and upbeat expectations have been wrong before.  

 Brexit has been delayed until 31 January 2020. While the General Election has 

maintained economic and political uncertainty, the opinion polls suggest the 

Conservative position in parliament may be strengthened, which reduces the chance 

of Brexit being further frustrated. A key concern is the limited transitionary period 

following a January 2020 exit date, which will maintain and create additional 

uncertainty over the next few years. 

 UK economic growth has stalled despite Q3 2019 GDP of 0.3%. Monthly figures 

indicate growth waned as the quarter progressed and survey data suggest falling 

household and business confidence. Both main political parties have promised 

substantial fiscal easing, which should help support growth. 

 The weaker external environment severely limits potential upside movement in Bank 

Rate, while the slowing UK economy will place pressure on the MPC to loosen 

monetary policy. Indeed, two MPC members voted for an immediate cut in November 

2019. 

 Inflation is running below target at 1.7%. While the tight labour market risks medium-

term domestically-driven inflationary pressure, slower global growth should reduce 

the prospect of externally driven pressure, although political turmoil could push up oil 

prices. 

 Central bank actions and geopolitical risks will continue to produce significant 

volatility in financial markets, including bond markets. 

Forecast:  

 Although we have maintained our Bank Rate forecast at 0.75% for the foreseeable 

future, there are substantial risks to this forecast from the evolution of the global 

economy.  

 Arlingclose judges that the risks are weighted to the downside. 

72



 
 

 Gilt yields have risen but remain low due to the soft UK and global economic outlooks. 

US monetary policy and UK government spending will be key influences alongside 

UK monetary policy. 

 We expect gilt yields to remain at relatively low levels for the foreseeable future and 

judge the risks to be broadly balanced. 

 

 PWLB Certainty Rate (Maturity Loans) = Gilt yield + 1.80% 

 PWLB Local Infrastructure Rate (Maturity Loans) = Gilt yield + 0.60% 

 

Dec-19 Mar-20 Jun-20 Sep-20 Dec-20 Mar-21 Jun-21 Sep-21 Dec-21 Mar-22 Jun-22 Sep-22 Dec-22 Average

Official Bank Rate

Upside risk 0.00 0.00 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.21

Arlingclose Central Case 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75

Downside risk -0.50 -0.75 -0.75 -0.75 -0.75 -0.75 -0.75 -0.75 -0.75 -0.75 -0.75 -0.75 -0.75 -0.73

3-month money market rate

Upside risk 0.10 0.10 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.25

Arlingclose Central Case 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75

Downside risk -0.50 -0.75 -0.75 -0.75 -0.75 -0.75 -0.75 -0.75 -0.75 -0.75 -0.75 -0.75 -0.75 -0.73

1yr money market rate

Upside risk 0.10 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.25 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.23

Arlingclose Central Case 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85

Downside risk -0.30 -0.50 -0.55 -0.65 -0.65 -0.65 -0.65 -0.65 -0.65 -0.65 -0.65 -0.65 -0.65 -0.60

5yr gilt yield

Upside risk 0.30 0.35 0.35 0.35 0.35 0.35 0.35 0.35 0.35 0.40 0.45 0.45 0.45 0.37

Arlingclose Central Case 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.55 0.60 0.60 0.60 0.60 0.60 0.60 0.60 0.60 0.60 0.57

Downside risk -0.35 -0.50 -0.50 -0.55 -0.60 -0.60 -0.60 -0.60 -0.60 -0.60 -0.60 -0.60 -0.60 -0.56

10yr gilt yield

Upside risk 0.30 0.30 0.35 0.35 0.35 0.35 0.35 0.35 0.35 0.40 0.40 0.45 0.45 0.37

Arlingclose Central Case 0.75 0.75 0.80 0.80 0.85 0.85 0.90 0.90 0.95 0.95 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.88

Downside risk -0.40 -0.40 -0.40 -0.40 -0.45 -0.45 -0.45 -0.45 -0.50 -0.50 -0.50 -0.50 -0.50 -0.45

20yr gilt yield

Upside risk 0.30 0.30 0.35 0.35 0.35 0.35 0.35 0.35 0.35 0.40 0.40 0.45 0.45 0.37

Arlingclose Central Case 1.20 1.20 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.35 1.35 1.35 1.40 1.40 1.30

Downside risk -0.40 -0.40 -0.45 -0.45 -0.45 -0.45 -0.45 -0.45 -0.45 -0.45 -0.45 -0.50 -0.50 -0.45

50yr gilt yield

Upside risk 0.30 0.30 0.35 0.35 0.35 0.35 0.35 0.35 0.35 0.40 0.40 0.45 0.45 0.37

Arlingclose Central Case 1.20 1.20 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.35 1.35 1.35 1.40 1.40 1.30

Downside risk -0.40 -0.40 -0.45 -0.45 -0.45 -0.45 -0.45 -0.45 -0.45 -0.45 -0.45 -0.50 -0.50 -0.45

73



Appendix B  

Existing Investment & Debt Portfolio Position 

 

 31.12.19 

Actual 

Portfolio 

£m 

31.12.19 

Average 

Rate 

% 

External borrowing:  

Public Works Loan Board 

Total external borrowing 

 

99.1 

99.1 

 

3.57% 

3.57% 

Other long-term liabilities: 

Finance Leases 

Total other long-term liabilities 

 

0 

0 

 

0 

0 

Total gross external debt 99.1 3.57% 

Treasury investments: 

Banks & building societies (unsecured) 

Government (incl. local authorities) 

Money Market Funds 

 

0.0 

22.9 

17.8 

 

0 

0.84% 

0.72% 

Total treasury investments 40.7 0.78% 

Net debt                 58.4  

 

 

 

 

74



Appendix 2 

Bolsover District Council 
 

Capital Strategy 2020/21 - 2023/24 

 
1 Strategy Details 
 
1.1 The Capital Strategy was introduced by the 2017 edition of the Prudential Code and 

is intended to give a high level, concise and comprehensible overview to all elected 
members of how capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury management 
activity, contribute to the provision of the Authority’s services.  The strategy also 
provides an overview of the associated risk, its management and the implications for 
future financial sustainability. 
 

1.2 This Capital Strategy outlines the Authority’s Capital Expenditure programme and 
Minimum Revenue Provision policy (MRP) for the years 2020/21 to 2023/24 for 
consideration and approval by Council before the start of each financial year. 
 

1.3 Investments held for service purposes or for commercial profit are considered in a 
different strategy, the Corporate Investment Strategy. 

 
1.4 A further strategy, the Treasury Management Strategy, details the Authority’s plans 

to invest cash surpluses and borrow to cover cash shortfalls. 
 
Introduction 

 
1.5 This Capital Strategy gives a high-level overview of how capital expenditure, capital 

financing and treasury management activity contribute to the provision of local public 
services along with an overview of how associated risk is managed and the 
implications for future financial sustainability. It has been written in an accessible style 
to enhance members’ understanding of these sometimes technical areas.  
 

1.6 Decisions made this year on capital and treasury management will have financial 
consequences for the Authority for many years into the future. They are therefore 
subject to both a national regulatory framework and to local policy framework, 
summarised in this report. 
 
Capital Expenditure and Financing 

  
1.7 Capital expenditure is where the Authority spends money on assets, such as property 

or vehicles that will be used for more than one year. In local government this includes 
spending on assets owned by other bodies, and loans and grants to other bodies 
enabling them to buy assets. The Authority has some limited discretion on what 
counts as capital expenditure, for example assets costing below £10,000 are not 
capitalised and are charged to revenue in year. 

 
In 2020/21, the Authority is planning capital expenditure of £6.040m as summarised 
below: 

 
 
 

75



Table 1: Prudential Indicator: Estimates of Capital Expenditure 
 

 2018/19 
actual 

£m 

2019/20 
forecast 

£m 

2020/21 
budget 

£m 

2021/22 
budget 

£m 

2022/23 
budget 

£m 

2023/24 
budget 

£m 

General Fund 
services 

1.458 2.568 1.868 2.465 1.954 2.870 

Council housing 
(HRA) 

13.728 13.307 4.172 4.177 5.072 5.288 

Capital investments 1.321 2.182 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL 16.507 18.057 6.040 6.642 7.026 8.158 

 
1.8 The main General Fund capital projects for 2020/21 include Grants for Disabled 

Facilities £0.900m and the purchase of Vehicles and Plant £0.442m. 
 
1.9 The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is a ring-fenced account which ensures that 

council housing does not subsidise, or is itself subsidised, by other local services. 
HRA capital expenditure is therefore recorded separately. 

  
1.10 Governance: Projects are included in the Authority’s capital programme usually as a 

result of a committee report throughout the year. The vehicle replacement programme 
is updated each year and the new requirements are included in the revised capital 
programme. The final capital programme is then presented to Executive and Council 
in February each year. 

 

 For full details of the Authority’s capital programme see Appendix A to this strategy. 
 

1.11 All capital expenditure must be financed, either from external sources (government 
grants and other contributions), the Authority’s own resources (revenue, reserves and 
capital receipts) or debt (borrowing and leasing). The planned financing of the above 
expenditure is as follows: 

 
Table 2: Capital financing 
 

 2018/19 
actual 

£m 

2019/20 
forecast 

£m 

2020/21 
budget 

£m 

2021/22 
budget 

£m 

2022/23 
budget 

£m 

2023/24 
budget 

£m 

External sources 3.076 1.463 1.160 0.900 0.900 0.900 

Own resources 8.451 14.300 4.880 5.742 6.126 7.258 

Debt 4.980 2.294 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL 16.507 18.057 6.040 6.642 7.026 8.158 

 
1.12 Debt is only a temporary source of finance since loans and leases must be repaid, 

and this is therefore replaced over time by other financing, usually from revenue 
which is known as minimum revenue provision (MRP).  Alternatively, proceeds from 
selling capital assets (known as capital receipts) may be used to replace debt finance. 
Planned MRP and use of capital receipts are as follows: 

 
 

76



Table 3: Replacement of debt finance 
 

 2018/19 
actual 

£m 

2019/20 
forecast 

£m 

2020/21 
budget 

£m 

2021/22 
budget 

£m 

2022/23 
budget 

£m 

2023/24 
budget 

£m 

MRP  0.706 0.757 0.712 0.716 0.454 0.376 

Capital receipts 0.055 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL 0.761 0.757 0.712 0.716 0.454 0.376 

 

 The Authority’s full minimum revenue provision statement is Appendix B to this 
strategy. 

 
1.13 The Authority’s cumulative outstanding amount of debt finance is measured by the 

capital financing requirement (CFR). This increases with new debt-financed capital 
expenditure and reduces with MRP and capital receipts used to replace debt. The 
CFR is expected to decrease by £0.712m during 2020/21. Based on the above figures 
for expenditure and financing, the Authority’s estimated CFR is as follows: 

 
Table 4: Prudential Indicator: Estimates of Capital Financing Requirement 
 

 31.3.2019 
actual 

£m 

31.3.2020 
forecast 

£m 

31.3.2021 
budget 

£m 

31.3.2022 
budget 

£m 

31.3.2023 
budget 

£m 

31.3.2024 
budget 

£m 

General 
Fund 
services 

8.017 8.656 7.943 7.227 6.774 6.397 

Council 
housing 
(HRA) 

106.452 108.745 108.745 108.745 108.745 108.745 

Capital 
investments 

1.321 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL 
CFR 

115.790 117.401 116.688 115.972 115.519 115.142 

 
1.14 Asset management: To ensure that capital assets continue to be of long-term use, 

the Authority has an asset management strategy in place. The Authority developed 
this strategy to set the context for the Corporate Asset Management Plan. The 
purpose of the plan is to manage the Authority’s corporate property and land portfolio 
effectively by providing buildings that meet the needs of the service, which are fit for 
purpose, sustainable, allow access for all, underpin corporate priorities and provide 
value for money 
 

 The Authority’s asset management strategy can be found on the data transparency 
area of our website,  www.bolsover.gov.uk  
 

1.15 Asset disposals: When a capital asset is no longer needed, it may be sold so that 
the proceeds, known as capital receipts, can be spent on new assets or to repay debt. 
Repayments of capital grants, loans and investments also generate capital receipts. 
The Authority has produced a Disposal and Acquisition Policy which documents the 
method and approval route for the disposal of an asset.  The Authority has not 

77

http://www.bolsover.gov.uk/


identified any specific sites for disposal and does not set budgets for receipts due to 
the uncertain nature of disposals, but a target to receive £150,000 of capital receipts 
in the coming financial year has been set as follows: 

 
Table 5: Capital receipts 
 

 2018/19 
actual 

£m 

2019/20 
forecast 

£m 

2020/21 
budget 

£m 

2021/22 
budget 

£m 

2022/23 
budget 

£m 

2023/24 
budget 

£m 

Asset sales 0.055 0.150 0.150 0 0 0 

 
Treasury Management 

 
1.16 Treasury management is concerned with keeping sufficient but not excessive cash 

available to meet the Authority’s spending needs, while managing the risks involved. 
Surplus cash is invested until required, while a shortage of cash will be met by 
borrowing, to avoid excessive credit balances or overdrafts in the bank current 
account. The Authority is typically cash rich in the short-term as revenue income is 
received before it is spent, but cash poor in the long-term as capital expenditure is 
incurred before being financed. The revenue cash surpluses are offset against capital 
cash shortfalls to reduce overall borrowing.  

 
1.17 Due to decisions taken in the past, the Authority currently has £99.1m borrowing at 

an average interest rate of 3.57% and £39.0m treasury investments at an average 
rate of 0.84%. 

 
1.18 Borrowing strategy: The Authority’s main objectives when borrowing are to achieve 

a low but certain cost of finance while retaining flexibility should plans change in 
future. These objectives are often conflicting, and the Authority therefore seeks to 
strike a balance between cheap short-term loans (currently available at around 
0.75%) and long-term fixed rate loans where the future cost is known but higher 
(currently 2.0 to 3.0%). 

 
1.19 Projected levels of the Authority’s total outstanding debt are shown below, compared 

with the capital financing requirement (see above). 
 
Table 6: Prudential Indicator: Gross Debt and the Capital Financing Requirement 
 

 31.3.2019 
actual 

£m 

31.3.2020 
forecast 

£m 

31.3.2021 
budget 

£m 

31.3.2022 
budget 

£m 

31.3.2023 
budget 

£m 

31.3.2024 
budget 

£m 

Debt  102.903 99.903 97.903 94.203 90.203 86.803 

Capital 
Financing 
Requirement 

115.790 117.401 116.688 115.972 115.519 115.142 

 
1.20 Statutory guidance is that debt should remain below the capital financing requirement, 

except in the short-term. As can be seen from table 6, the Authority expects to comply 
with this in the medium term.  

 
1.21 Liability benchmark: To compare the Authority’s actual borrowing against an 

alternative strategy, a liability benchmark has been calculated showing the lowest risk 

78



level of borrowing. This assumes that cash and investment balances are kept to a 
minimum level of £10m at each year-end. This benchmark is currently £77.7m and is 
forecast to drop to £75.3m over the next four years. The table below shows that the 
Authority expects to remain borrowed above its liability benchmark. 

 
Table 7: Borrowing and the Liability Benchmark 
 

 31.3.2019 
actual 

£m 

31.3.2020 
forecast 

£m 

31.3.2021 
budget 

£m 

31.3.2022 
budget 

£m 

31.3.2023 
budget 

£m 

31.3.2024 
budget 

£m 

Outstanding 
PWLB 
borrowing 

102.1 99.1 97.1 93.4 89.4 86.0 

Liability 
benchmark 

76.1 77.7 76.9 76.2 75.8 75.3 

 
1.22 Affordable borrowing limit: The Authority is legally obliged to set an affordable 

borrowing limit (also termed the authorised limit for external debt) each year and to 
keep it under review. In line with statutory guidance, a lower “operational boundary” 
is also set as a warning level should debt approach the limit. 

 
Table 8: Prudential Indicators: Authorised limit and operational boundary for external debt  
 

 2019/20 
limit 
£m 

 

2020/21 
limit 
£m 

2021/22 
limit 
£m 

2022/23 
limit 
£m 

2023/24 
 limit 
£m 

Authorised limit 127.401 126.688 125.972 125.519 125.142 

Operational 
boundary 

122.401 121.688 120.972 120.519 120.142 

 

 Further details on borrowing are in paragraphs 1.23 to 1.35 of the Treasury 
Management Strategy. 

 
1.23 Corporate Treasury Investment strategy: Treasury investments arise from 

receiving cash before it is paid out again. Investments made for service reasons or 
for pure financial gain are not generally considered to be part of treasury 
management.  

 
1.24 The Authority’s policy on treasury investments is to prioritise security and liquidity 

over yield.  That is to focus on minimising risk rather than maximising returns. Cash 
that is likely to be spent in the near term is invested securely, for example with the 
government, other local authorities or selected high-quality banks, to minimise the 
risk of loss. Money that will be held for longer terms is invested more widely, including 
in bonds, shares and property, to balance the risk of loss against the risk of receiving 
returns below inflation. Both near-term and longer-term investments may be held in 
pooled funds, where an external fund manager makes decisions on which particular 
investments to buy and the Authority may request its money back at short notice. 

 
Table 9: Treasury management investments 
 

79



 
31.3.2019 

actual 
£m 

31.3.2020 
forecast 

£m 

31.3.2021 
budget 

£m 

31.3.2022 
budget 

£m 

31.3.2023 
budget 

£m 

31.3.2024 
budget 

£m 

Near-term 
investments 

36.0 31.4 30.2 27.2 23.6 20.7 

Longer-term 
investments 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL 36.0 31.4 30.2 27.2 23.6 20.7 

 
Further details on treasury investments are in paragraphs 1.36 to 1.58 of the Treasury 
Management Strategy.  
 

1.25 Risk management: The effective management and control of risk are prime 
objectives of the Authority’s treasury management activities. The treasury 
management strategy therefore sets out various indicators and limits to constrain the 
risk of unexpected losses and details the extent to which financial derivatives may be 
used to manage treasury risks. 

 
1.26 Governance: Decisions on treasury management investment and borrowing are 

made daily and are therefore delegated to the Chief Financial Officer and staff, who 
must act in line with the Treasury Management Strategy approved by Council. 
Quarterly reports on treasury management activity are presented to Executive. The 
Audit committee is responsible for scrutinising treasury management decisions. 

 
Investments for Service Purposes 

 
1.27 The Authority makes investments to assist local public services, including making 

loans to parish/town councils or local community organisations to promote economic 
growth. In light of the public service objective, the Authority is willing to take more risk 
than with treasury investments, however it still plans for such investments to at least 
break even after all costs.  

 
1.28 Governance: Decisions on service investments are made by the relevant service 

manager and submitted to Council/Executive in consultation with the Chief Financial 
Officer and must meet the criteria and limits laid down in the Corporate Investment 
Strategy. Most loans and shares are capital expenditure and purchases will therefore 
also be approved as part of the capital programme. 

 

 Further details on service investments are in paragraphs 1.10 to 1.18 of the Corporate 
Investment strategy. 

 
Commercial Activities 

 
1.29 With central government financial support for local public services declining, the 

Authority has developed a Commercial Property Investment Strategy based around 
expanding its existing non-housing property portfolio.  This is in order to develop 
revenue streams that provide a required level of return to offset the forecast budget 
deficits for forthcoming years. This approach can also support economic development 
and regeneration in the District through targeted investment. 

 
1.30 With financial return being the main objective, the Authority accepts higher risk on 

commercial investment than with treasury investments. The financial viability of each 

80



individual potential investment opportunity will be fully assessed within a 
comprehensive business case.  This is in order to reflect the potential risk that may 
arise as a consequence of undertaking commercial property investment and provide 
a sufficient financial contribution to the Authority’s General Fund. A minimum Internal 
Rate of Return (IRR) will be set in the Commercial Property Investment Strategy. 

 
1.31 Governance: It is acknowledged that commercial investment opportunities may 

require agile and quick decision making. However, in order to ensure appropriate 
governance arrangements are maintained, investment decisions will be made in 
accordance with the Authority’s existing decision making process, threshold levels 
and Scheme of Delegation contained within the Authority’s Constitution. Where it is 
not possible to wait until the next Executive and/or Council meeting, an extra-ordinary 
meeting will be arranged as soon as practicably possible.  

 

 Further details on commercial investments and limits on their use are in paragraphs 
1.19 to 1.23 of the Corporate Investment Strategy. 
 

 Further details on the risk management of commercial investments are in the 
Commercial Property Investment Strategy 

 
Liabilities 

 
1.32 In addition to debt of £99.903m detailed above, the Authority is committed to making 

future payments to cover its net pension fund deficit (valued at £51.4m). It has also 
set aside £2.1m to cover risks of future legal costs and Business Rates Appeals.  (All 
figures are as at 31/3/19). 

 
1.33 Governance: Decisions on incurring new discretional liabilities are taken to Council 

for approval. The risk of liabilities crystallising and requiring payment is monitored as 
part of the year-end process. 

 

 Further details on liabilities are in note 21 and 38 of the 2018/19 Statement of 
Accounts document, which is available on our website. 

 
Revenue Budget Implications 

 
1.34 Although capital expenditure is not charged directly to the revenue budget, interest 

payable on loans and MRP are charged to revenue, offset by any investment income 
receivable. The net annual charge is known as financing costs; this is compared to 
the net revenue stream i.e. the amount funded from Council Tax, business rates and 
general government grants. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Table 10: Prudential Indicator: Proportion of financing costs to net revenue stream 
 

81



 
2018/19 
actual 

2019/20 
forecast 

2020/21 
budget 

2021/22 
budget 

2022/23 
budget 

2023/24 
budget 

Financing costs 
(£m) 

0.678 0.552 0.541 0.580 0.357 0.323 

Proportion of 
net revenue 
stream 

8.63% 5.61% 4.78% 6.29% 3.87% 3.47% 

 
1.35 Sustainability: Due to the very long-term nature of capital expenditure and financing, 

the revenue budget implications of expenditure incurred in the next few years will 
extend for up to 50 years into the future. The Chief Financial Officer is satisfied that 
the proposed capital programme is prudent, affordable and sustainable.  

 
Knowledge and Skills 

 
1.36 The Authority employs professionally qualified and experienced staff in senior 

positions with responsibility for making capital expenditure, borrowing and investment 
decisions. For example, the Chief Financial Officer is a qualified accountant, the 
Director of Development is a member of the Chartered Institute of Building (MCIOB) 
 

1.37 Where Authority staff do not have the knowledge and skills required, use is made of 
external advisers and consultants that are specialists in their field. The Authority 
currently employs Arlingclose Limited as treasury management advisors.  This 
approach is more cost effective than employing such staff directly, and ensures that 
the Authority has access to knowledge and skills commensurate with its risk appetite. 
 
Treasury Management Operations 
 

1.38 As mentioned above the Authority uses external treasury management advisors.  The 
company provides a range of services which include:  
 

 Technical support on treasury matters, capital finance issues and the drafting of 
Member reports; 

 Economic and interest rate analysis; 

 Debt services which includes advice on the timing of borrowing; 

 Debt rescheduling advice surrounding the existing portfolio; 

 Generic investment advice on interest rates, timing and investment instruments; 

 A number of free places at training events offered on a regular basis. 

 Credit ratings/market information service, comprising the three main credit rating 
agencies;   

 
1.39 Whilst the advisers provide support to the internal treasury function, under current 

market rules and the CIPFA Code of Practice the final decision on treasury matters 
remains with the Authority.  This service is subject to regular review.  It should be 
noted that the Authority has Arlingclose Ltd as external treasury management 
advisors, for a period of 3 years commencing October 2019.  

 
1.40 It is important that both Members and Officers dealing with treasury management are 

trained and kept up to date with current developments. This Authority has addressed 
these requirements by: 
 

82



a. Members’ individual training and development needs are addressed by a 
Member Development Programme. 

b. Officers attend training seminars held by the external treasury management 
advisors and CIPFA. 

 

Banking Contract  
 

1.41 The contract with the Authority’s banking provider Lloyds Bank, commenced on the 
10th February 2015 for a period of 7 years. 

 

83



CAPITAL PROGRAMME SUMMARY Revised Original Forecast Forecast Forecast

Budget Programme Programme Programme Programme

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

£ £ £ £ £

General Fund

AMP - PV Mills 123,505 0 0 0 0

AMP - The Arc 92,107 0 0 0 0

AMP - Leisure Buildings 28,864 0 0 0 0

AMP - Riverside Depot 65,355 0 0 0 0

AMP - The Tangent 4,995 0 0 0 0

AMP - Investment Properties 9,712 0 0 0 0

AMP - Refurbishment Work 35,083 260,000 260,000 260,000 260,000

Refurbishment - Oxcroft House 27,500 0 0 0 0

Pleasley Vale Mill 1 - Dam Wall 36,493 78,332 0 0 0

Car Parking at Clowne - Additional 105,203 0 0 0 0

The Tangent - Phase 2 21,490 0 0 0 0

PV Mansafe System 29,229 0 0 0 0

PV Fire Compartmentation & Fire Doors 23,095 0 0 0 0

Rock Face Stabilisation Work 20,000 0 0 0 0

Can Ranger Expansion 14,532 0 0 0 0

637,163 338,332 260,000 260,000 260,000

Project Horizon

Clowne Campus - Refurbishment 23,077 0 0 0 0

23,077 0 0 0 0

ICT Schemes

ICT infrastructure 106,380 123,200 164,200 54,200 174,200

Payment Kiosks 57,000 0 0 0 0

Governance Software 14,000 0 0 0 0

Fleet Management System 32,500 0 0 0 0

209,880 123,200 164,200 54,200 174,200

Leisure Schemes

P Vale Outdoor Education Centre Ph 2 29,770 0 0 0 0

Clowne Leisure Facility 45,211 0 0 0 0

Go Active Equipment 15,000 15,000 0 0 0

Pool Cover 23,697 0 0 0 0

Replacement Astro Turf Pitch 0 50,000 0 0 0

Gym Equipment & Spin Bikes 0 0 365,000 0 0

Kitchen & Associated Equipment 0 0 20,000 0 0

113,678 65,000 385,000 0 0

Private Sector Schemes

Disabled Facility Grants 999,472 900,000 900,000 900,000 900,000

Group Repair (WT) 2,675 0 0 0 0

Station Road Shirebrook 1,341 0 0 0 0

1,003,488 900,000 900,000 900,000 900,000

Joint Venture

Dragonfly Joint Venture Shares 375,750 0 0 0 0

Dragonfly Joint Venture Loan 1,806,002 0 0 0 0

2,181,752 0 0 0 0

Vehicles and Plant

Vehicle Replacements 486,425 441,500 756,000 740,000 1,536,000

Vehicle Wash Area 94,707 0 0 0 0

581,132 441,500 756,000 740,000 1,536,000

Total General Fund 4,750,170 1,868,032 2,465,200 1,954,200 2,870,200

APPENDIX A

84



CAPITAL PROGRAMME SUMMARY Revised Original Forecast Forecast Forecast

Budget Programme Programme Programme Programme

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

£ £ £ £ £

APPENDIX A

Housing Revenue Account

New Build Properties

Recreation Close Clowne 168,430 0 0 0 0

Hilltop 56,354 0 0 0 0

Ash Close Pinxton 36,628 0 0 0 0

Beech Grove South Normanton 13,794 0 0 0 0

St Michaels Drive South Normanton 3,363 0 0 0 0

Highcliffe Ave Shirebrook 443 0 0 0 0

The Paddock Bolsover 1,969,381 0 0 0 0

Keepmoat Properties at Bolsover 850,908 0 0 0 0

3,099,301 0 0 0 0

Vehicle Replacements 0 63,500 69,000 364,000 580,000

0 63,500 69,000 364,000 580,000

Public Sector Housing

Electrical Upgrades 129,149 120,000 0 0 0

Cavity Wall + Loft Insulation 4,692 0 0 0 0

External Door Replacements 109,235 100,000 0 0 0

Heating Upgrades 2,692 0 0 0 0

Environmental Works 50,000 0 0 0 0

Reactive Capital Works 190,000 150,000 0 0 0

Kitchen Replacements - Decent Homes 360,236 200,000 0 0 0

Safe and Warm 2,697,588 2,300,000 0 0 0

Regeneration Mgmt & Admin 69,320 69,320 69,320 69,320 69,320

Re Roofing 807,663 750,000 0 0 0

Flat Roofing 25,000 25,000 0 0 0

Soffit and Fascia 112,431 0 0 0 0

Welfare Adaptations 480,000 300,000 0 0 0

Bramley Vale 200,000 0 0 0 0

House Fire Damage (Insurance) 50,000 0 0 0 0

Unallocated Major Repairs Reserve 0 34,529 4,038,929 4,638,929 4,638,929

5,288,006 4,048,849 4,108,249 4,708,249 4,708,249

ICT Schemes

Open Housing 56,269 59,400 0 0 0

56,269 59,400 0 0 0

New Bolsover Scheme (inc HLF)

New Bolsover-Regeneration Scheme 4,863,469 0 0 0 0

4,863,469 0 0 0 0

Total HRA 13,307,045 4,171,749 4,177,249 5,072,249 5,288,249

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 18,057,215 6,039,781 6,642,449 7,026,449 8,158,449

85



CAPITAL PROGRAMME SUMMARY Revised Original Forecast Forecast Forecast

Budget Programme Programme Programme Programme

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

£ £ £ £ £

APPENDIX A

Capital Financing

General Fund

Better Care Fund (999,472) (900,000) (900,000) (900,000) (900,000)

Reserves (3,541,455) (708,362) (1,285,200) (769,200) (765,700)

External Funding (152,243) (259,670) 0 0 0

Capital Receipts (57,000) 0 (280,000) (285,000) (1,204,500)

(4,750,170) (1,868,032) (2,465,200) (1,954,200) (2,870,200)

HRA

Major Repairs Reserve (9,395,999) (4,108,249) (4,108,249) (4,708,249) (4,708,249)

Prudential Borrowing (2,293,801) 0 0 0 0

Vehicle Reserve 0 (63,500) (69,000) (364,000) (580,000)

HRA Development Reserve (500,000) 0 0 0 0

1-4-1 Capital Receipts (805,500) 0 0 0 0

External Funding (311,745) 0 0 0 0

(13,307,045) (4,171,749) (4,177,249) (5,072,249) (5,288,249)

TOTAL CAPITAL FINANCING (18,057,215) (6,039,781) (6,642,449) (7,026,449) (8,158,449)

Capital Reserves

Major Repairs Reserve

Opening Balance (5,271,050) (59,292) (59,292) (59,292) (59,292)

Amount due in Year (4,184,241) (4,108,249) (4,108,249) (4,708,249) (4,708,249)

Amount used in Year 9,395,999 4,108,249 4,108,249 4,708,249 4,708,249

Closing Balance (59,292) (59,292) (59,292) (59,292) (59,292)

HRA Development Reserve

Opening Balance (1,544,983) (2,259,983) (3,759,983) (5,559,983) (7,059,983)

Amount due in Year (1,500,000) (1,500,000) (1,800,000) (1,500,000) (2,000,000)

Amount used in Year 785,000 0 0 0 0

Closing Balance (2,259,983) (3,759,983) (5,559,983) (7,059,983) (9,059,983)

HRA Vehicle Reserve

Opening Balance (335,529) (455,529) (592,029) (723,029) (559,029)

Amount due in Year (120,000) (200,000) (200,000) (200,000) (260,000)

Amount used in Year 0 63,500 69,000 364,000 580,000

Closing Balance (455,529) (592,029) (723,029) (559,029) (239,029)

1-4-1 Capital Receipts Reserve

Opening Balance (1,250,276) (586,985) (586,985) (586,985) (586,985)

Amount due in Year (142,209) 0 0 0 0

Amount used in Year 805,500 0 0 0 0

Closing Balance (586,985) (586,985) (586,985) (586,985) (586,985)

86



 
 

Appendix B 

 

Annual Minimum Revenue Provision Statement 2020/21 
 
Where the Authority finances capital expenditure by debt, it must put aside resources to 
repay that debt in later years.  The amount charged to the revenue budget for the repayment 
of debt is known as Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), although there has been no 
statutory minimum since 2008. The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Authority to 
have regard to the Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government’s Guidance 
on Minimum Revenue Provision (the MHCLG Guidance) most recently issued in 2018. 
 
The broad aim of the MHCLG Guidance is to ensure that capital expenditure is financed 
over a period that is either reasonably commensurate with that over which the capital 
expenditure provides benefits, or, in the case of borrowing supported by Government 
Revenue Support Grant, reasonably commensurate with the period implicit in the 
determination of that grant. 
 
The MHCLG Guidance requires the Authority to approve an Annual MRP Statement each 
year, and recommends a number of options for calculating a prudent amount of MRP.  The 
following statement incorporates options recommended in the Guidance: 
 

For capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008 the Minimum Revenue Provision 
policy will be: 

 

 Historic Debt - MRP will follow the existing practice outlined in former MHCLG 
Regulations (Option 1) - capital financing requirement minus “adjustment A” 
multiplied by 4%.  

 
From 1 April 2008 for all capital expenditure funded by borrowing the Minimum 
Revenue Provision policy will be: 

 

 Asset Life Method - MRP will be based on the estimated useful life of the 
asset starting in the year after the asset becomes operational.  MRP on 
purchases of freehold land will be charged over 50 years. MRP on expenditure 
not related to fixed assets but which has been capitalised by regulation or 
direction will be charged over 20 years. 

 
For assets acquired by finance leases or the Private Finance Initiative, MRP will be 
determined as being equal to the element of the rent or charge that goes to write down the 
balance sheet liability. 
 
For capital expenditure loans to third parties that are repaid in annual or more frequent 

instalments of principal, the Council will make nil MRP, but will instead apply the capital 

receipts arising from principal repayments to reduce the capital financing requirement 

instead. In years where there is no principal repayment, MRP will be charged in accordance 

with the MRP policy for the assets funded by the loan, including where appropriate, delaying 

MRP until the year after the assets become operational. While this is not one of the options 

in the MHCLG Guidance, it is thought to be a prudent approach since it ensures that the 

capital expenditure incurred in the loan is fully funded over the life of the assets. 

 

87



 
 

 
No MRP will be charged in respect of assets held within the Housing Revenue Account.  
 
The charge to revenue for MRP is not made until the year after which the capital expenditure 
is incurred.  
 
During 2019/20 the Authority took steps to reduce the amount of MRP charged in 2020/21 
and future years.  By swapping the financing of the capital programme from borrowing to 
the use of reserves, no new borrowing costs are planned to be incurred. 
 
Based on the Authority’s latest estimate of its Capital Financing Requirement on 31st March 
2020, the budget for MRP for borrowing incurred in previous years’ has been set as follows: 
 

 

31.03.2020 
Estimated 

CFR 
£m 

2020/21 
Estimated 

MRP 
£ 

Capital expenditure before 01.04.2008 0.169 0.162 

Unsupported capital expenditure incurred 
31.03.2008 – 31.03.2019 

0.588 0.550 

Finance leases  0 0 

Total General Fund 0.757 0.712 

Assets in the Housing Revenue Account 0 0 

HRA subsidy reform payment 0 0 

Total Housing Revenue Account 0 0 

Total 0.757 0.712 

 

88



 
 

Appendix 3 

Bolsover District Council 
 

Corporate Investment Strategy 2020/21 - 2023/24 
 
1 Strategy Details 
 
1.1 The Corporate Investment Strategy was introduced by the 2018 edition of the 

government’s Guidance on Local Government Investments.  It focuses on 
investments made for service purposes and commercial reasons, rather than those 
made for treasury management. 

 
1.2 This strategy outlines the Authority’s Corporate Investment Strategy for the years 

2020/21 to 2023/24 for consideration and approval by Council before the start of each 
financial year. 

  
1.3 The Authority’s Capital Expenditure programme and Minimum Revenue Provision 

policy (MRP) are considered in a different strategy, the Capital Strategy. 
 
1.4 A further strategy, the Treasury Management Strategy, details the Authority’s plans 

to invest cash surpluses and borrow to cover cash shortfalls. 
 
Introduction 
 

1.5 The Authority invests its money for three broad purposes: 
 

 because it has surplus cash as a result of its day-to-day activities, for example when 
income is received in advance of expenditure (known as treasury management 
investments), 
 

 to support local public services by lending to or buying shares in other organisations 
(service investments), and 
 

 to earn investment income (known as commercial investments where this is the 
main purpose). 

 
1.6 This Corporate Investment Strategy meets the requirements of statutory guidance 

issued by the government in January 2018, and focuses on the second and third of 
these categories.  

  
Treasury Management Investments  

 
1.7 The Authority typically receives its income in cash (e.g. from taxes and grants) before 

it pays for its expenditure in cash (e.g. through payroll and invoices). It also holds 
reserves for future expenditure and collects local taxes on behalf of other local 
authorities and central government. These activities, plus the timing of borrowing 
decisions, lead to a cash surplus which is invested in accordance with guidance from 
the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy. The balance of treasury 
management investments is expected to fluctuate between £31m and £43m during 
the 2020/21 financial year. 

89



 
 

1.8 Contribution: The contribution that these investments make to the objectives of the 
Authority is to support effective treasury management activities.  

 
1.9 Further details: Full details of the Authority’s policies and its plan for 2020/21 for 

treasury management investments are covered in a separate document, the Treasury 
Management Strategy. 

 
Service Investments: Loans 

 
1.10 Contribution: The Authority lends money to its joint ventures, business partners, 

parish/town councils, local charities, housing associations, and community groups to 
support local public services and stimulate local economic growth.  For example we 
may give a loan to a parish council who are undertaking a large building project to 
help with cash flow until external monies are received.  

 
1.11 Security: The main risk when making service loans is that the borrower will be unable 

to repay the principal lent and/or the interest due. In order to limit this risk, and ensure 
that total exposure to service loans remains proportionate to the size of the Authority, 
upper limits on the outstanding loans to each category of borrower have been set as 
follows:  

 
Table 1: Loans for service purposes 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.12 Accounting standards require the Authority to set aside a loss allowance for loans, 

reflecting the likelihood of non-payment. The figures for loans in the Authority’s 
statement of accounts are shown net of this loss allowance. However, the Authority 
makes every reasonable effort to collect the full sum lent and has appropriate credit 
control arrangements in place to recover overdue repayments.  
 

1.13 Risk assessment: The Authority assesses the risk of loss before entering into and 
whilst holding service loans by undertaking a comprehensive business case for each 
individual potential investment opportunity. This will include a market analysis 
focusing on competition, demand and current market trends. External advisors will be 
used where appropriate to ensure that the Authority has access to quality advice and 

Category of 
borrower 

31.3.2019 actual 2020/21 

Balance 
owing 

Loss 
allowance 

Net 
figure in 
accounts 

Approved 
Limit 

Joint Ventures - 
Dragonfly 

£1.259m 0 £1.259m £6m 

Business Partners 0 0 0 £5m 

Parish / Town 
Councils 

0 0 0 £5m 

Local charities 0 0 0 £5m 

Housing 
associations 

0 0 0 £5m 

Community Groups 0 0 0 £5m 

TOTAL £1.259m 0 £1.259m  

90



 
 

expertise in specialist areas. Each potential investment will undergo qualitative and 
quantitative appraisal to establish its suitability to the Authority’s core values and the 
legal and financial implications of the purchase. 

   
Service Investments: Shares 
 

1.14 Contribution: The Authority invests in the shares of its Joint Venture, Dragonfly 
Development Limited to support local public services and stimulate local economic 
growth by delivering housing and commercial developments whilst generating income 
for the Authority.  
 

1.15 Security: One of the risks of investing in shares is that they fall in value meaning that 
the initial outlay may not be recovered. In order to limit this risk, upper limits on the 
sum invested in each category of shares have been set as follows:  
 
Table 2: Shares held for service purposes 

 

Category of 
company 

31.3.2019 actual 2020/21 

Amounts 
invested 

Gains or 
losses 

Value in 
accounts 

Approved 
Limit 

Joint Venture - 
Dragonfly 

£0.169m 0 £0.169m £1.000m 

TOTAL £0.169m 0 £0.169m £1.000m 

 
1.16 Risk assessment: The Authority assesses the risk of loss before entering into and 

whilst holding shares by undertaking a comprehensive business case for each 
individual potential investment opportunity. This will include a market analysis 
focusing on competition, demand and current market trends. External advisors will be 
used where appropriate to ensure that the Authority has access to quality advice and 
expertise in specialist areas. Each potential investment will undergo qualitative and 
quantitative appraisal to establish its suitability to the Authority’s core values and the 
legal and financial implications of the purchase. 
 

1.17 Liquidity: Based on the approved limit in Table 2 the funds will not be required in the 
short term and may prudently be committed for the periods covered by this strategy. 

 
1.18 Non-specified Investments: Shares are the only investment type that the Authority 

has identified that meets the definition of a non-specified investment in the 
government guidance. The limits above on share investments are therefore also the 
Authority’s upper limits on non-specified investments. The Authority has not adopted 
any procedures for determining further categories of non-specified investment since 
none are likely to meet the definition. 
 
Commercial Investments: Property 

  
1.19 Contribution: The Authority’s current investment in commercial property is 

characterised by the larger investments, Pleasley Vale Mills and The Tangent 
Business Hub which are aimed to provide appropriate commercial accommodation to 
support local small businesses to develop and grow.  The Authority has developed a 
Commercial Property Investment Strategy which looks to expand its existing non-
housing property portfolio with the intention of making a profit wherever possible that 
will be spent on local public services. 

91



 
 

 
1.20 Security: In accordance with government guidance, the Authority considers a 

property investment to be secure if its accounting valuation is at or higher than its 
purchase cost including taxes and transaction costs. 
 

1.21 A fair value assessment of the Authority’s investment property portfolio has been 
made within the past twelve months, and the underlying assets provide security for 
capital investment.  Should the 2019/20 year end accounts preparation and audit 
process value these properties below their purchase cost, then an updated Corporate 
Investment Strategy will be presented to full council detailing the impact of the loss 
on the security of investments and any revenue consequences arising therefrom. 
 

1.22 Risk assessment: The Authority assesses the risk of loss before entering into and 
whilst holding property investments by undertaking a comprehensive business case 
for each individual potential investment opportunity. This will include a market 
analysis focusing on competition, demand and current market trends. External 
advisors will be used where appropriate to ensure that the Authority has access to 
quality advice and expertise in specialist areas. Each potential investment will 
undergo qualitative and quantitative appraisal to establish its suitability to the 
Authorities core values and the legal and financial implications of the purchase 
 

1.23 Liquidity: Compared with other investment types, property is relatively difficult to sell 
and convert to cash at short notice, and can take a considerable period to sell in 
certain market conditions. To ensure that the invested funds can be accessed when 
they are needed, for example to repay capital borrowed, the Authority will only invest 
cash that is not needed in the short term based on current cash flow predictions. In 
addition to this a well-diversified property portfolio will be held, spread across different 
property sectors. 

 
 Loan Commitments and Financial Guarantees 
 
1.24 Although not strictly counted as investments, since no money has exchanged hands 

yet, loan commitments and financial guarantees carry similar risks to the Authority 
and are included here for completeness.  
 

1.25 The Authority has contractually committed to make up to £3.020m of loans to 
Dragonfly Development Limited should it request it.  

 
Borrowing in Advance of Need 

 
1.26 Government guidance is that local authorities must not borrow more than or in 

advance of their needs purely in order to profit from the investment of the extra sums 
borrowed.  

 
Capacity, Skills and Culture 

 
1.27 Elected members and statutory officers: This Authority recognises the importance 

of ensuring that all Elected Members and Officers involved in investment decisions 
are fully equipped to undertake the duties and responsibilities allocated to them. It 
will therefore seek to appoint individuals who are both capable and experienced and 
will provide training for staff to enable them to acquire and maintain an appropriate 
level of expertise, knowledge and skills. Elected Members’ individual training and 

92



 
 

development needs are addressed by a Member Development Programme. The 
Authority’s Treasury Management Advisors Arlingclose, provide both Elected 
Members and Officers with training in relation to all areas of Treasury Management. 

 
1.28 Commercial deals: The Authority has a decision making framework which is aligned 

to the requirements of the Statutory Guidance Relating to Local Authority 
Investments. A dedicated Property Investment Panel, made up of Cabinet Members 
and the relevant Directors / Heads of Service, including legal and financial Officers 
will prepare a business case for each potential Commercial Investment. 

 
1.29 Corporate governance: The Commercial Property Investment Strategy sets out a 

number of core principles the Authority will require in a commercial investment. All 
investments will need to align with Corporate Plan priorities. 

 
Investment Indicators 

 
1.30 The Authority has set the following quantitative indicators to allow elected members 

and the public to assess the Authority’s total risk exposure as a result of its investment 
decisions.  

 
1.31 Total risk exposure: The first indicator shows the Authority’s total exposure to 

potential investment losses. This includes amounts the Authority is contractually 
committed to lend but have yet to be drawn down and guarantees the Authority has 
issued over third party loans. 

 
Table 3: Total investment exposure 

 

Total investment exposure 
31.03.2019 

Actual 
31.03.2020 
Forecast 

31.03.2021 
Forecast 

Treasury management 
investments 

£34.561 £31.400 £30.200 

Service investments: Loans £1.259 £0.150 £1.571 

Service investments: Shares £0.169 £0.02 £0.157 

TOTAL INVESTMENTS £35.989 £31.570 £31.928 

Commitments to lend £1.721 £1.571 £0 

TOTAL EXPOSURE £37.710 £33.141 £31.928 

 
1.32 How investments are funded: Government guidance is that these indicators should 

include how investments are funded. Since the Authority does not normally associate 
particular assets with particular liabilities, this guidance is difficult to comply with. 
However, the following investments could be described as being funded by 
borrowing. The remainder of the Authority’s investments are funded by usable 
reserves and income received in advance of expenditure. 
 
 
 
 
 

93



 
 

Table4: Investments funded by borrowing 
 

Investments funded by 
borrowing 

31.03.2019 
Actual 

31.03.2020 
Forecast 

31.03.2021 
Forecast 

Joint Venture - Dragonfly £1.321 0 0 

TOTAL FUNDED BY 
BORROWING 

£1.321 0 0 

 
1.33 Rate of return received: This indicator shows the investment income received less 

the associated costs, including the cost of borrowing where appropriate, as a 
proportion of the sum initially invested. Note that due to the complex local government 
accounting framework, not all recorded gains and losses affect the revenue account 
in the year they are incurred. 

 
Table 5: Investment rate of return (net of all costs) 

 

Investments net rate of return 
2018/19 
Actual 

2019/20 
Forecast 

2020/21 
Forecast 

Treasury management 
investments 

0.76% 0.79% 0.75% 

ALL INVESTMENTS 0.76% 0.79% 0.75% 

 

 The Joint Venture, Dragonfly, has not been included in the above table as its 
main focus is to support local public services and stimulate local economic 
growth rather than commercial investment. 

 

94


	Agenda
	8 Reports on urgency decisions taken by the Executive
	Appendix 1 - Urgency Notice
	Appendix 2 - Decision Notice Extract

	9 Mileage Policy
	UECC- Appendix One BDC Mileage and Related Travel Expenses Policy January 2020 Final Final Draft

	11 Procedure for Conferring the title of Honorary Alderman
	Bolsover Honours

	12 Medium Term Financial Plan 2020/21 to 2023/24
	Appendix 1 General Fund
	Appendix 2 General Fund Detail
	Appendix 3 HRA
	Appendix 3 Table1 HRA Fees and Charges
	Appendix 4 Capital

	13 Treasury Strategy Reports 2020/21 - 2023/24
	2 Treasury Management Strategy 2021
	3 TMS Appendix A
	4 TMS Appendix B
	5 Capital Strategy 2021
	6 Capital Strategy Appendix A
	7 MRP Appendix B
	8 Corporate Investment Strategy 2021


